
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive

February 16, 2016 6:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER
Invocation - Led by Jim Cutter, Pastor of Church on the Rock
Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Mayor Severns
Excuse Absent Councilmembers

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

2. PRESENTATIONS
a. Proclamations

b. Honors & Recognitions

c. Community Presentations

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive

February 16, 2016 6:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER
Invocation - Led by Jim Cutter, Pastor of Church on the Rock
Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Mayor Severns
Excuse Absent Councilmembers

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

2. PRESENTATIONS
a. Proclamations

b. Honors & Recognitions

c. Community Presentationsc. Community Presentations
i. Planning Commission's 2015 Annual Report to City Council

3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD
Citizens may comment on subjects of interest not listed on the agenda or items listed on the Consent 
Agenda. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the microphone. 
Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to speak.

4. CONSENT AGENDA
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Council and will be enacted with
one motion unless separate discussion is requested. Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the
Mayor to implement each item in accordance with staff recommendations.

Consent Items
a. Minutes of the Regular Meeting on February 2, 2016, and Special Meeting on February 10, 2016
b. Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks
c. Resolution 16-09: Signature Authority for SRF Loan #WQC-2016-OakHar-00240
d. Special Event Permit - Race Week 2016 Catalina Park
e. Purchase Authorization-Chevrolet Colorado Pick-ups
f. Purchase Authorization-Ford Police Interceptor SUV

c. Community Presentations
i. Planning Commission's 2015 Annual Report to City Council

3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD
Citizens may comment on subjects of interest not listed on the agenda or items listed on the Consent 
Agenda. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the microphone. 
Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to speak.

4. CONSENT AGENDA
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Council and will be enacted with 
one motion unless separate discussion is requested. Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the
Mayor to implement each item in accordance with staff recommendations.

Consent Items
a. Minutes of the Regular Meeting on February 2, 2016, and Special Meeting on February 10, 2016
b. Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks
c. Resolution 16-09: Signature Authority for SRF Loan #WQC-2016-OakHar-00240
d. Special Event Permit - Race Week 2016 Catalina Park
e. Purchase Authorization-Chevrolet Colorado Pick-ups
f. Purchase Authorization-Ford Police Interceptor SUV

1



g. Surplus Authorization-Panasonic Toughbooks
h. Freedom Properties: Letter of Intent to Exercise Option No. 2 per the Agreement to Extend the 

Lease for a 3-year term
i. Signature authority for Change Order Proposal (COP) #3 - Energy Efficiency Project 

(Ameresco)
j. Clean Water Facility - Puget Sound Energy Schedule 74 Agreement and temporary service 

Agreement to underground power lines.

5. STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS
a. City Administrator

i. Clean Water Facility Project Update by City Staff
b. Mayor
c. Councilmembers

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS
To speak during a scheduled public hearing or meeting, please sign-in on the sheet provided in the 
Council Chambers. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the 
microphone. Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to 
speak.

a. None

7. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS
a. Resolution 16-07: Countywide Planning Policies

8. CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS
a. None

g. Surplus Authorization-Panasonic Toughbooks
h. Freedom Properties: Letter of Intent to Exercise Option No. 2 per the Agreement to Extend the 

Lease for a 3-year term
i. Signature authority for Change Order Proposal (COP) #3 - Energy Efficiency Project 

(Ameresco)
j. Clean Water Facility - Puget Sound Energy Schedule 74 Agreement and temporary service 

Agreement to underground power lines.

5. STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS
a. City Administrator

i. Clean Water Facility Project Update by City Staff
b. Mayor
c. Councilmembers

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS
To speak during a scheduled public hearing or meeting, please sign-in on the sheet provided in the 
Council Chambers. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the 
microphone. Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to 
speak.

a. None

7. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS
a. Resolution 16-07: Countywide Planning Policies

8. CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS
a. Nonea. None

9. OTHER ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION
a. None

10. REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS
a. None

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION
a. Discussion regarding Review of Public Employees Performance - No Action will be taken
b. Discussion regarding Wells Fargo Property Acquisition, and Reconvene into Open Session to 

take Possible Action

ADJOURN

a. None

9. OTHER ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION
a. None

10. REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS
a. None

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION
a. Discussion regarding Review of Public Employees Performance - No Action will be taken
b. Discussion regarding Wells Fargo Property Acquisition, and Reconvene into Open Session to 

take Possible Action

ADJOURN

It is the policy of the City to assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City 
services. Where possible the City will provide reasonable accommodation in compliance with WLAD, ADA, 
and any other applicable laws. Requests for accommodation should be made two (2) days in advance of the 
scheduled meeting by contacting the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539. 

It is the policy of the City to assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City 
services. Where possible the City will provide reasonable accommodation in compliance with WLAD, ADA, 
and any other applicable laws. Requests for accommodation should be made two (2) days in advance of the 
scheduled meeting by contacting the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539. 

2



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Planning Commission's 2015 
Annual Report to City Council

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
No action is required – this item is for information only.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Staff will present the Planning Commission's 2015 Annual Report to the City Council.  Members of the 
Planning Commission may be in attendance at the Council meeting.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 2.c.i
Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Planning Commission's 2015 
Annual Report to City Council

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
No action is required – this item is for information only.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Staff will present the Planning Commission's 2015 Annual Report to the City Council.  Members of the 
Planning Commission may be in attendance at the Council meeting.

LEGAL AUTHORITYLEGAL AUTHORITY
Oak Harbor Municipal Code (OHMC) Chapter 18.04 establishes the Planning Commission and its 
responsibilities.  OHMC Section 18.04.070 requires the Planning Commission to make an annual report
to the City Council.

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
The Planning Commission reviewed the annual report at their January 26, 2016 meeting and 
recommended that it be forwarded to the City Council.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Planning Commission's 2015 Annual Report to City Council

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Oak Harbor Municipal Code (OHMC) Chapter 18.04 establishes the Planning Commission and its 
responsibilities.  OHMC Section 18.04.070 requires the Planning Commission to make an annual report 
to the City Council.

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
The Planning Commission reviewed the annual report at their January 26, 2016 meeting and 
recommended that it be forwarded to the City Council.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Planning Commission's 2015 Annual Report to City Council

3

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=3507ae08e21f08e45e749bfbadb2ed75&aName=1454524957_at.pdf


Photo  
Courtesy of Cac Kamak 

Planning Commission’s  

Annual Report to the City Council 

2015

4



 
 
 
 
 
 

Table of Contents 
 

Section One:  Accomplishments 
 

• Summary of 2015 Accomplishments…………………………………………….Page 3 
 
 
Section Two:  2016 Work Program 
 

• Proposed 2016 Work Program…………………………………………………….Page 5 
 
 
Section Three:  Planning Commission  

General Recommendations to the City Council………………….Page 8 
 
Appendix:  Planning Commission  

2015 Action Details…………………………………….………………….Page 10 
 
 
 
 

2015 Planning Commission Members 
 

Greg Wasinger, Chair 
Bruce Freeman, Vice Chair 

Ana Maria Schlecht  
Sandi Peterson  
Mike Piccone 
Cecil Pierce 

Jes Walker-Wyse 
 
 
 

  

5



 

 Page 3 
 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Planning Commission’s Annual Report to the City Council 
 
2015 
 
 
Section 1:  Accomplishments 
 
 
  

6



 

 Page 4 
 

  

Summary of 2015 Accomplishments 
 

• Comprehensive Plan Amendments 
o Sponsored Amendment 

1. Land use change for 3 lots on SW 3rd Avenue Low Density Residential 
to Medium Density Residential 

o Mandated Items 
1. 2016-2021 Capital Improvements Plan 
2. 2016 Comprehensive Plan Update – completed review of revised 

Countywide Planning Policies as part of the 2016 update 
3. 2016 Comprehensive Plan Update – preliminary review of Vision 

Statement and Transportation Element 
4. Adoption of Official Zoning Map 

• Rezone – of 1000 SE City Beach Street from R4, High Density Residential to PF, 
Public Facilities.  The rezone is an implementation of the 2014 Comprehensive 
Plan Land Use amendment that changed the property’s designation from High 
Density Residential to Public Facilities. 

• Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program  

• Code Amendments 
o Homeless Encampments – reviewed draft and forwarded a recommendation 

to City Council to approve regulations relating to how and where an 
organized, sponsored homeless encampment may be established. 

o Site Plan Code Amendment – reviewed draft and forwarded a 
recommendation to the City Council to approve an amendment to allow 
permits to be issued in a different sequence so as to facilitate the General 
Contractor Construction Management (GC/CM) construction process.  

o Zoning Code Amendment – reviewed draft and forwarded a recommendation 
to the City Council to approve a housekeeping ordinance to address topics of 
reasonable accommodation, definition of family and home daycare. 

o Medical Marijuana Code - considered extending the moratorium presently in 
place prohibiting the establishment of medical marijuana collective gardens 
and medical marijuana dispensaries in Oak Harbor and forwarded a 
recommendation to the City Council to extend the moratorium for one year. 

o Maritime Zoning Regulations – reviewed draft regulations and forwarded a 
recommendation to the City Council to approve the maritime zoning 
regulations for the Maritime District.  

o Wireless Facilities Modification Code – reviewed draft code amendment and 
forwarded a recommendation to City Council to approve amendments to Title 
19 Oak Harbor Municipal Code implementing the new FCC requirements for 
wireless facility modifications.  
 

7



 

 Page 5 
 

  

• Training 
• Open Public Meetings Act  
• A Short Course on Local Planning 

• Annual Report to City Council  
o 2016 Planning Commission work program  
o Planning Commission accomplishments in 2015 

  

8



 

 Page 6 
 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Planning Commission’s Annual Report to the City Council 
 
2015 
 
 
Section 2:  2016 Proposed Work Program 
 
 
  

9



 

 Page 7 
 

  

Proposed 2016 Work Program Schedule 
 
 

Work Program Items 2016 
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

2016 TIP Updates             
Capital Facilities Plan/Capital 
Improvement Plan Update 

            

2016 Comprehensive Plan Amendments 
• Land capacity analysis 
• Land Use Element 
• Housing Element 
• Transportation Element 
• Miscellaneous amendments 

            

Low Impact Development Code 
Amendments 

     
 

       

Rezone 3 lots on SW 3rd Avenue             
Medical Marijuana Regulations             

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Note:  The above schedule is approximate and subject to change as necessary. 
  

10



 

 Page 8 
 

  

 
 

Description of 2016 Proposed Work Program Items 
 

2016 Comprehensive Plan Amendment Docket 
Review of any items on the Comprehensive Docket and consideration whether to 
propose any item as a potential amendment to the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
2016 Comprehensive Plan Amendments 

• 2016 Updates to the Comprehensive Plan - Mandated 
o Land Use Element 

 Population and Projections 
 Land Use inventory 
 Population densities and Building intensities 
 Updates to Critical Areas 

o Housing Element 
 Inventory and analysis on existing housing 
 Projected housing needs based on projections 
 Sufficient land for housing 
 Policies regarding manufactured home 

o Transportation Element 
 Update the Transportation Plan 

• Capital Improvements Plan update - Mandated 
• Facility Plan for the wastewater treatment plant – Mandated 

 
2016 TIP Updates 
Updates to the 6-year Transportation Improvement Program and the Capital 
Improvement Plan for adoption into the Comprehensive Plan 
 
Low Impact Development Code Amendments 
NPDES permit necessitates code amendments to integrate Low Impact Development 
strategies and BMP’s as a required form of stormwater runoff methodology. 
 
 
 
 
  

11



 

 Page 9 
 

  

Description of 2016 Proposed Work Program Items 
Continued 

 
Rezoning of 3 lots on SW 3rd Avenue 
The Planning Commission will rezone 3 lots on SW 3rd Avenue to implemented land use 
change approved as part of the 2015 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Medical Marijuana Regulations 
The Planning Commission will reviewed draft code to establish appropriate zoning and 
standards for medical marijuana and provided recommendations to City Council 
 
Continue work on 2016 Comprehensive Plan Amendments 
The Planning Commission will consider information related to and make 
recommendations on the land capacity of the Oak Harbor Urban Growth Area.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

12



 

 Page 
10 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Planning Commission’s Annual Report to the City Council 
 
2015 
 
 
Section 3: Planning Commission  

General Recommendations to City Council 
 
 

13



 

 Page 
11 

 
  

Planning Commission General Recommendations to City Council 
 
No general recommendations at this time. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

14



 

 Page 
12 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Planning Commission’s Annual Report to the City Council 
 
2015 
 
 
Appendix: Planning Commission  

2015 Action Details 
 
 
 

15



DETAIL 
2015 

Planning Commission 
Actions 

 
JANUARY 

January 27, 2015 
2015 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – Public Hearing 

 The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on the preliminary docket for the annual comprehensive plan 
amendments.  The items that are currently on the preliminary docket are the continued work on the mandated 2016 
Major Update to the Comprehensive Plan, Capital Improvements Plan, and Facility Plan for the wastewater treatment 
plant.  A sponsored amendment for a land use change from Low Density Residential to Medium Density Residential 
for 3 lots on SW 3rd Avenue (R132034884830, R132034884940, and R132034885060) is also tracking on the 
preliminary docket. 
ACTION: MS. PETERSON MOVED, MR. PIERCE SECONDED MOTION CARRIED TO RECOMMEND 

THAT THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE THE PROPOSED DOCKET FOR THE 2015 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS.   

 
DRAFT COUNTYWIDE PLANNING POLICIES – Public Meeting 

 The Countywide Planning Policies (CWPP) are policy statements adopted by Island County and the jurisdictions 
within intended to establish a countywide framework from which county and city comprehensive plans are developed.  
Adoption of the CWPP is required by the Growth Management Act and they are being revised as part of the 2016 
update to the Comprehensive Plan.  Staff continued the discussion with the Planning Commission on the current 
status of this project. No Action  
 
ANNUAL REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL – Public Meeting 
The Planning Commission discussed and reviewed their annual report to the City Council. The annual report is a 
summary of Planning Commission’s accomplishments in 2015 and proposed work program for 2015. 
 

FEBRUARY 
February 24, 2015 
REZONE 1000 SE CITY BEACH STREET – R4, HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL TO PF, PUBLIC FACILITIES – 
Public Hearing 
The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on the rezoning of 1000 SE City Beach Street from R4, High 
Density Residential to PF, Public Facilities.  The rezoning is an implementation of the Comprehensive Plan Land Use 
amendment that changes the property’s designation from High Density Residential to Public Facilities.  The property 
is currently owned by the City.  The intent of the change is to designate the property to allow use of the site as a 
private burial ground/cemetery for the Swinomish Indian Tribal Community. 
 ACTION: MR. FREEMAN MOVED, MR. PIERCE SECONDED MOTION CARRIED TO   

 RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE THE REZONING OF   
 THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1000 SE CITY BEACH STREET FROM R4,   
 MULTIFAMILY RESIDENTIAL TO PF, PUBLIC FACILITIES. 

 
DRAFT COUNTYWIDE PLANNING POLICIES – Public Meeting 
Staff briefed the Planning Commission on the policies related to population projection and land capacity analysis.  
No Action   
 
ANNUAL REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL – Public Meeting 
The Planning Commission discussed and reviewed their annual report to the City Council.  At the conclusion of the 
meeting the Planning Commission forwarded the report to the City Council. 
 
HOMELESS ENCAMPMENT CODE AMENDMENT – Public Meeting 
The Municipal Code does not contain any regulations relating to how or where an organized, sponsored homeless 
encampment may be established.  Staff briefed the Commission on the need to establish such regulations and 
presented an initial draft ordinance. No Action 
 

MARCH 
March 24, 2015 
DRAFT COUNTYWIDE PLANNING POLICIES – Public Hearing 
Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on the Countywide Planning Policies (CWPP). CWPP are policy 
statements adopted by Island County and the jurisdictions within intended to establish a countywide framework from 
which county and city comprehensive plans are developed.  Adoption of the CWPP is required by the Growth 
Management Act and they are being revised as part of the 2016 update to the Comprehensive Plan.    

16



ACTION: MS. WALKER-WYSE MOVED, MS. PETERSON SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO AMEND 
SECTION 3.3 3. A AND C TO CHANGE 50% TO 30%.   

ACTION: MS. PETERSON MOVED, MR. PIERCE SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO CONTINUE THE  
  PUBLIC HEARING TO THE APRIL 28, 2015 MEETING. 
 
2016 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE – Public Meeting 
Staff provided an update on the progress of the 2016 Comprehensive Plan Update.  The major scope of the 2016 
Comprehensive Plan Update includes updates to the Land Use Element, Housing Element and the Transportation 
Element.  Staff will also provide information on the tentative schedule. No Action 
 
HOMELESS ENCAMPMENT CODE AMENDMENT – Public Meeting 
The Municipal Code does not contain any regulations relating to how or where an organized, sponsored homeless 
encampment may be established.  Staff presented additional information regarding the draft code and will respond to 
Planning Commission questions raised at the February meeting. No Action 

 
APRIL 

April 28, 2015 
DRAFT COUNTYWIDE PLANNING POLICIES – Public Hearing 
The public hearing on the draft Countywide Planning Policies was continued from the March 24, 2015 meeting.  After 
accepting additional public testimony at this meeting the Planning Commission closed the hearing made the following 
motions. 
MOTION: MS. PETERSON MOVED, MS. WALKER-WYSE SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO AMEND 

SECTION 3.3 3. A AND C, CHANGING 30% TO 50%.  
 
MOTION: MR. PIERCE MOVED, MR. PICCONE SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO RECOMMEND THAT 

THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE THE DRAFT COUNTYWIDE PLANNING POLICIES AS 
AMENDED. 

 
ADOPTION OF OFFICIAL ZONING MAP – Public Hearing 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on adoption of the Official Zoning Map for the City of Oak Harbor. 
The Planning Commission recommended that the City Council approve the Official Zoning Map as presented. 
MOTION: MR. PICCONE MOVED, MR. PIERCE SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO RECOMMEND THAT 

THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP AS PRESENTED. 
 
2016 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE – Public Meeting 
Staff provided an update on the progress of the 2016 Comprehensive Plan Update.  The major scope of the 2016 
Comprehensive Plan Update includes updates to the Land Use Element, Housing Element and the Transportation 
Element. No Action 
 

MAY 
MAY 26, 2015 
SITE PLAN CODE AMENDMENT – Public Hearing 
A portion of Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 19.48, Site Plan Review Procedures, establishes the sequence of 
issuance for certain development permits.  Staff proposed an amendment to this section that allows the permits to be 
issued in a different sequence.  The proposed amendment will not eliminate the need for any permits.  The Planning 
Commission conducted a public hearing on the proposed code and forwarded a recommendation to the City Council. 
MOTION: MR. PIERCE MOVED, MR. PICCONE SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO RECOMMEND THAT 
  THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE ORDINACE 1720 
 
HOMELESS ENCAMPMENT CODE AMENDMENT – Public Meeting 
The Planning Commission will reviewed additional information pertaining to the draft homeless encampment 
regulations. No Action 
 
2016 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE – Public Meeting 
Staff will provided an update on the progress of the 2016 Comprehensive Plan Update.  The major scope of the 2016 
Comprehensive Plan Update includes updates to the Land Use Element, Housing Element and the Transportation 
Element. No Action  
 

JUNE  
June 23, 2015 
HOMELESS ENCAMPMENT CODE AMENDMENT – Public Hearing 
The Municipal Code does not contain any regulations relating to how or where an organized, sponsored homeless 
encampment may be established. The Planning Commission discussed and reviewed the draft homeless 
encampment regulations. Planning Commission made a recommendation to the City Council. 

17



MOTION: MR. PIERCE MOVED, MR. FREEMAN SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO RECOMMEND 
THAT THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE ORDINACE 1712 AS WRITTEN.  

 
ZONING CODE AMENDMENT – Public Hearing 
Minor amendments to the Zoning Code are necessary for the topics of reasonable accommodation, definition of 
family and home daycare.  Staff presented a housekeeping ordinance to address these topics.  The Planning 
Commission conducted a public hearing and forwarded a recommendation to the City Council.  
ACTION: MS. WALKER-WYSE MOVED, MS. SCHLECHT SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO 

RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE ORDINACE 1739 AS WRITTEN.  
 
MEDICAL MARIJUANA CODE – Public Meeting 
A moratorium is presently in place prohibiting the establishment of medical marijuana collective gardens and 
marijuana dispensaries in Oak Harbor.  Recently adopted State law replaces the use categories with a different 
regulatory scheme.  Staff presented preliminary research to the Planning Commission that will begin the process of 
determining what permanent regulations should govern these uses. No Action 
 
2016 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE – Public Meeting 
Staff provided an update on the major scope of the 2016 Comprehensive Plan Update including updates to the Land 
Use Element, Housing Element and the Transportation Element. No Action 
 

JULY 
July 28, 2015 
SIX-YEAR TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP) – Public Hearing 
The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing to consider the updates to the Six-Year Transportation 
Improvement Program for the years 2016-2021. The Planning Commission forwarded a recommendation to the City 
Council. 
ACTION: MS. WALKER-WYSE MOVED, MR. PIERCE SECONDED A MOTION TO RECOMMEND THAT 

THE CITY COUNCIL ADOPT THE 2016-2021 SIX-YEAR TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT 
PROGRAM AS PRESENTED.  MOTION CARRIED BY A VOTE OF 4 IN FAVOR AND 1 
OPPOSED. 

 
MEDICAL MARIJUANA CODE – Public Hearing 
The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing to consider extending the moratorium presently in place 
prohibiting the establishment of medical marijuana collective gardens and medical marijuana dispensaries in Oak 
Harbor.  The Planning Commission forwarded a recommendation to the City Council. 
ACTION: MR. FREEMAN MOVED, MS. WALKER-WYSE SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO 

RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL EXTEND THE EXISTING MEDICAL MARIJUANA 
MORATORIUM ORDINANCE NO. 1692 AN ADDITIONAL ONE YEAR UNTIL SEPTEMBER 1, 
2016.   

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN LAND USE AMENDMENT – Public Hearing 
The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on a request to change the land use designation for properties 
located on the south side of SW 3rd Avenue and north of the Oak Harbor Middle School (185 SW 3rd Avenue - 
Parcels R13203-488-4830, R13203-348-4940 and R13203-488-5060) from Low Density Residential to Medium 
Density Residential.  The Planning Commission forwarded a recommendation to the City Council. 
ACTION: MS. PETERSON MOVED, MR. PIERCE SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO RECOMMEND 

THAT THE CITY COUNCIL AMMEND THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP DESIGNATION OF THE 
SUBJECT PROPERTIES FROM LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL TO MEDIUM DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL. 

 
TELECOMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE – Public Meeting 
The Federal Communications Commission (FCC) approved revised requirements for local review and approval for 
collocation, removal, and replacement of wireless facilities. Staff will presented the requirements and how they will 
impact existing regulations included in Title 19 of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code. No Action 
 
2016 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE – Workshop 
Staff provided an update on the progress of the 2016 Comprehensive Plan Update.  The major scope of the 2016 
Comprehensive Plan Update includes updates to the Land Use Element, Housing Element and the Transportation 
Element.  The Planning Commission also discussed and explored possible changes to the Future Land Use Map. No 
Action 

18



 
 

AUGUST 
August 25, 2015  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TRANSPORTATION ELEMENT – Public Meeting 
The Planning Commission received introductory information regarding the approach and anticipated steps involved in 
updating the Transportation Element of the Comprehensive Plan. No Action 
 
2016 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE – Public Meeting 
Staff provided an update on the progress of the 2016 Comprehensive Plan update.  The major scope of the 2016 
Comprehensive Plan update includes updates to the Land Use Element, Housing Element and the Transportation 
Element. No Action 
 
 

SEPTEMBER 
September 22, 2015 
MARITIME ZONING ORDINANCE – Public Hearing 
The Planning Commission will conduct a public hearing to consider an ordinance implementing zoning regulations for 
the Maritime Zoning District. The Planning Commission will forward a recommendation to the City Council at the 
conclusion of the hearing. 
ACTION: MR. FREEMAN MOVED, MS PETERSON SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO RECOMMEND 

THAT THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE THE MAITIME ZONING REGULATIONS AS 
PRESENTED. 

 
WIRELESS FACILITIES MODIFICATION – Public Hearing 
The Federal Communications Commission (FCC) approved revised requirements for local review and approval for 
collocation, removal, and replacement of wireless facilities. Staff will present draft code amendments to Title 19 Oak 
Harbor Municipal Code implementing the new FCC requirements.  The Planning Commission will forward a 
recommendation to the City Council at the conclusion of the meeting. 
ACTION: MS. PETERSON MOVED, MR. FREEMAN SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO RECOMMEND 

THAT THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE ORDINANCE 1744 AS PRESENTED. 
 
2016 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE – Public Meeting 
Staff will provide an update on the progress of the 2016 Comprehensive Plan update.  The major scope of the 2016 
Comprehensive Plan update includes updates to the Land Use Element, Housing Element and the Transportation 
Element. No Action 
 
 

OCTOBER 
October 27, 2015 
2015 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT:  
• 2016 – 2021 CAPITIAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN – Public Hearing 
• 2015 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS: RECOMMENDATION TO CITY COUNCIL 

The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on the 2016-2021 Capital Improvement Plan and 
forwarded a recommendation to the City Council to approve the 2016 -2021 CIP on all of the 2015 
amendments which included the Capital Improvements Plan and a sponsored amendment for a land use 
change from Low Density Residential to Medium Density Residential for 3 lots on SW 3rd Avenue.  
 

2016 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE – Public Meeting 
Staff provided an update on the progress of the 2016 Comprehensive Plan update.  
 

NOVEMBER 
November 24, 2015 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TRANSPORTATION ELEMENT – Public Meeting 
The Planning Commission reviewed the draft goals and policies being prepared for the update to the Transportation 
Element of the Comprehensive Plan.  The City’s transportation consultants, Fehr & Peers, were in attendance. 
 
2016 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE – Public Meeting 
Staff briefed the Commission on the progress of the 2016 Comprehensive Plan update and reviewed the Vision 
Statement data collected to-date.   
 
 
 
 

19



DECEMBER 
December 8, 2015 
TRANSPORTATION PLAN UPDATE – Public Meeting 
Staff and the consultant team brief the Commission on the status of the Transportation Plan and discussed levels-of-
service standards. 
 
2016 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE – Public Meeting 
Staff briefed the Commission on the progress of the 2016 Comprehensive Plan update. 
 

20



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Minutes of the Regular Meeting 
on February 2, 2016, and 
Special Meeting on February 
10, 2016

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Minutes as Presented.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.a
Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Minutes of the Regular Meeting 
on February 2, 2016, and 
Special Meeting on February 
10, 2016

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Minutes as Presented.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. 2/02/2016 Minutes
2. 2/10/2016 Minutes

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. 2/02/2016 Minutes
2. 2/10/2016 Minutes

21

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=3507ae08e21f08e45e749bfbadb2ed75&aName=1454611968_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=3507ae08e21f08e45e749bfbadb2ed75&aName=1455225518_at.pdf


Regular Meeting Minutes – February 2, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 

 Oak Harbor City Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

February 2, 2016 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Bob Severns called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

City Council Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Bob Severns  City Administrator/Finance Director Dr. Merriman 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Tara Hizon  Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Councilmember Beth Munns Development Services Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Rick Almberg City Engineer Joe Stowell 
Councilmember Jim Campbell Project Engineer Brett Arvidson 
Councilmember Joel Servatius Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 
Councilmember Erica Wasinger Chief of Police Ed Green 

Economic Development Coordinator Barbara Spohn 
Executive Assistant to Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 
Deputy Clerk Nicole Tesch 

CALL TO ORDER 

Pastor Ron Lawler of Family Bible Church provided the invocation, and then Mayor Severns led 
the led the pledge of allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to approve the Agenda as presented, motion 
  seconded by Councilmember Campbell, and the motion was unanimously approved. 

PRESENTATIONS 

Honors & Recognitions 
Mayor Severns led the Oath of Police Officer for Michael Brown 

Joe Stowell, City Engineer, recognized Arnold Peterschmidt for 10 years of service 

CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 

Mayor Bob Severns opened the Citizen Comment Period at 6:14 p.m. 

22



 
Regular Meeting Minutes – February 2, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 
 

Citizens Speaking 
 

• Rick Chapman    
• Bill Massey   
• Wayne Locke   
• Yvonne Vancleef  
• Patty Cohen 

   
At 6:23 p.m. Mayor Severns called for a vote to extend the Comment Period to accommodate 
the amount of citizen comments. 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Campbell moved to extend the Comment Period, and seconded by  

      Councilmember Munns.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

• Dwight Galbraith   
• Jeff Humphry   
• Jim Wiessner   
• Ken Hulett    
• Hal Hovey     

  
After all comments were provided, the Citizen Comment period was closed at 6:46 p.m. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

a. Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting held on January 19, 2016, and the 
Workshop on January 20, 2016 

b. Approval of Accounts Payable and Check Numbers 
c. Resolution 16-06: Island Transportation Planning Organization (ITPO) 
d. Department of Corrections Jail Contract for Services K9413(3) 
 

 
Motion:   Councilmember Hizon moved to approve Consent Agenda Items as presented,  

    motion seconded by Councilmember Munns, motion passed by unanimous vote.  
 
 

STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

City Administrator 
 
Dr. Merriman announced that a Special Meeting Workshop is scheduled for Wednesday Febru-
ary 10th, 2016 from 2:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m.  
 

Clean Water Facility Project Update by City Staff 
 
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the Council with an update on the Clean Water Facility  
Project.   

2016 Whidbey Island Marathon Update by Race Director – Elks Lodge 
 
Jason Wayne of the Elks Lodge provided an update on the 2016 Marathon. 
 

23



 
Regular Meeting Minutes – February 2, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 
 

Mayor 
 
Mayor Bob Severns went over his calendar with the City Council.   
 
Councilmembers 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao talked about meeting our Legislators in Olympia.   
 
Councilmember Campbell talked about meeting our Legislators in Olympia.   
 
Councilmember Munns mentioned that the AWC City Action Days had really good attendance 
this year.   
 
Councilmember Almberg had no comments. 
 
Councilmember Servatius had brief comments about the AWC City Action Days.  
 
Councilmember Hizon had no comments. 
 
Councilmember Wasinger thanked the City staff and fellow Council members for opportunity to 
serve.   
 

CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS 
 

Clean Water Facility - Carollo Engineers - Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for 
SCADA Services 
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the staff report. 
 
Mayor Severns opened the item for public comment at 7:26 p.m., no comments, closed com-
ment period at 7:26 p.m. 
 
Clean Water Facility - Carollo Engineers - Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for 
SCADA Services 
 
Motion:   Councilmember Servatius moved to authorize the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment  

No. 13 with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $1,828,155, increasing the total con 
tract amount from $9,605,341 to $11,433,496.  Councilmember Munns seconded, and 
the motion was unanimously approved.  

 
ADJOURN 

 
Motion:  Councilmember Almberg moved to adjourn, seconded by Councilmember Campbell,       

   unanimously approved.  
 
Meeting adjourned at 7:41 p.m. 
 
           Nicole A. Tesch, Deputy City Clerk 

24



Special Meeting Minutes – February 10, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 

 Oak Harbor City Council 
Special Meeting Minutes 

February 10, 2016 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Bob Severns called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

City Council Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Bob Severns  City Administrator/Finance Director Dr. Merriman 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Tara Hizon  Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Councilmember Beth Munns Development Services Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Rick Almberg City Engineer Joe Stowell 
Councilmember Jim Campbell Project Engineer Brett Arvidson 
Councilmember Joel Servatius Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 
Councilmember Erica Wasinger Chief of Police Ed Green 

Economic Development Coordinator Barbara Spohn 
Executive Assistant to Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 
Deputy City Clerk Nicole Tesch 
City Clerk Anna Thompson 

1. Granicus Training for City Councilmembers – Voting on iPads
Executive Assistant to the Mayor Kellye Mazzoli provided training to the Councilmembers to uti-
lize voting on iPads.  

Mayor Severns moved to item 2 at 2:25 p.m. 

2. Discussion and possible action on Clean Water Facility Community Room
City Administrator Dr. Merriman shared a PowerPoint presentation and opened the Clean Water 
Facility Community Room item for discussion. 

Discussion among City Councilmembers beginning with Councilmember Munns. Councilmem-
ber Almberg questioned whether Mayor Severns would open up public comment for 30 minutes.  

Motion:  Councilmember Almberg moved to open public comment for 30 minutes, seconded by 
  Councilmember Campbell, and the motion passed by majority vote. 

  Voting in favor of the Motion:  Councilmembers Paggao, Almberg, Wasinger, 
  Campbell, and Hizon 

  Voting in opposition to the Motion: Councilmembers Servatius and Munns 

Mayor Severns opened Public Comment at 2:54 p.m. 

25



 
Special Meeting Minutes – February 10, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 
 

Citizen Comments 
• Terica Ginther  
• Billie Cook  
• Rick Chapman 
• Wayne Locke  
• Ken Hulett 
• Bill Massey 
• Kristi Jensen  
• John Smith  
• Susan Meyers  

 
Mayor closed public comment at 3:12 p.m. 
 
Handout given to City Council by Councilmember Almberg in reference to cost estimate from 
Hoffman Construction. 
 
Discussion and Comments among Members of Council.  
 
Main Motion: Councilmember Almberg moved to immediately rescind Resolution 15-34 there 

   by excluding the construction of a community use room from the clean water  
facility.  Motion was seconded by Councilmember Campbell, and the motion 
passed by a majority vote. 
 

Amendment:  Mayor Pro Tem Paggao moved to add “to revisit the construction of a  
community center for possible funding during the next budgeting cycle.   The  
Motion was seconded by Councilmember Almberg, and the motion passed by a   
majority vote. 

 
Voting in favor of the Motion:  Councilmembers Munns, Paggao, Almberg, 
Wasinger, and Campbell 

 
Voting in opposition to the Motion: Councilmember Hizon and Servatius  

 
Main Motion as Amended:  Councilmember Almberg moved to immediately rescind Resolution  

           15-34 thereby excluding the construction of a Community Use 
Room from the Clean Water Facility, and to revisit the construction 
of a community center for possible funding during the next budget-
ing cycle. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Camp-
bell, and the motion passed by a majority vote. 

 
Voting in favor of the Motion:  Councilmembers Munns, Paggao, Almberg, 
Wasinger, and Campbell 

 
Voting in opposition to the Motion: Councilmember Hizon and Servatius 
 

ADJOURN 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Campbell moved to adjourn, and Mayor Pro Tem Paggao seconded.   

   The Motion passed unanimously. 
 

26



 
Special Meeting Minutes – February 10, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 
 

The Meeting adjourned at 4:31 p.m. 
 
            Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk and  

 Nicole A. Tesch, Deputy City Clerk 

27



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
Vouchers and Payroll Checks

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers and Check Numbers listed in 
the Background/ Summary Information section below.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.b
Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
Vouchers and Payroll Checks

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers and Check Numbers listed in 
the Background/ Summary Information section below.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Check Numbers are submitted for approval:

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

-Voucher Numbers 165188, and 165325 through 165495 in the amount of $454,055.35.

Payroll Check Numbers:

- Direct Deposit check numbers 37087 through 37216.

- EFT check numbers 781 through 783.

- Payroll check numbers 98658 through 98674.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Check Numbers are submitted for approval:

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

-Voucher Numbers 165188, and 165325 through 165495 in the amount of $454,055.35.

Payroll Check Numbers:

- Direct Deposit check numbers 37087 through 37216.

- EFT check numbers 781 through 783.

- Payroll check numbers 98658 through 98674.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

28



PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing (1)
2. Voucher Listing (2)
3. Voucher Listing (3)

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing (1)
2. Voucher Listing (2)
3. Voucher Listing (3)

29

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=3507ae08e21f08e45e749bfbadb2ed75&aName=1454611204_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=3507ae08e21f08e45e749bfbadb2ed75&aName=1454977613_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=3507ae08e21f08e45e749bfbadb2ed75&aName=1455209624_at.pdf


02/04/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 8:50:04AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165188 1/25/2016 0008088  BECKER, RON 1 TRAVEL REFUND  40.00
Total :  40.00

Bank total :  40.00 1 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 40.00Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 1

1Page:
30



02/08/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 3:40:17PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165325 1/27/2016 0000490  LABOR & INDUSTRIES, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF123115 LABOR & INDUSTRIES  112.79
Total :  112.79

 165326 2/2/2016 0000709  PERS 123115 PERS/FRONDOZO/JANSEN/KIESEL/LANGE/MACAPI 13,396.65
Total :  13,396.65

 165327 2/2/2016 0000709  PERS 123115A PERS/CARROLL/RODGERS  5,447.92
Total :  5,447.92

 165328 2/2/2016 0000709  PERS 123115B PERS/VON HADEN/JK JANSEN/POLLOCK  520.10
Total :  520.10

 165329 2/2/2016 0000709  PERS 123115C PERS/WALSTAD  3,186.26
Total :  3,186.26

 165331 2/8/2016 0005550  ARCHITECTURAL ELEMENTS 2015-12-17 KIOSK  7,554.65
Total :  7,554.65

 165332 2/8/2016 0000083  BAZA, ALVIN 100515 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165333 2/8/2016 0004018  BOXWOOD TECHNOLOGY, INC 2256165 JOB POSTING  495.00
 495.00JOB POSTING2278119

Total :  990.00

 165334 2/8/2016 0000247  DIAMOND RENTALS 1-500608-49 PORTABLES  60.00
 60.00PORTABLES1-500619-49

Total :  120.00

 165335 2/8/2016 0008111  GEMPLERS SI02005264 OVERALLS  147.75
Total :  147.75

 165336 2/8/2016 0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 1022349 HEATER/THERMOSTAT/LATCH  209.83
 74.33CEILING TILE1022393
 56.70CDR/PREM2021132
 7.30PLUGS2022258

 15.20BATTERIES2046939

1Page:
31



02/08/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

 3:40:17PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165336 2/8/2016 (Continued)0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES
 64.22EPOXY/ROV2050980
-76.06PLANER2092861
 90.1980CFM HDBF22518
 16.28BATTERIES2590810
 23.35TOILET SEAT3020981
 46.70TOILET SEAT3580403
 58.92PALRUF/ROOFING/NUT DRIVER5020707
 50.13SCREW/CDR5020766
 26.04GFCI/CLEAR6020512
 76.06PLANER7046669
 51.09SCRUBBER/PR GRND BM7083808
 23.20SOLTHHN8021589

 175.45WRENCH/SOCKET/DRILL8572811
 102.15PLK RG6/SCOURTPRO29022596
 50.99HELMET9022642
 20.10BALLAST9046524
 49.75REPAIR/HOSE9051170

Total :  1,211.92

 165337 2/8/2016 0000438  ISLAND PAINT & GLASS 31158 PAINT  26.83
Total :  26.83

 165338 2/8/2016 0008110  MINUTEMAN PRESS 62442 ROLL PLOTS  93.16
Total :  93.16

 165339 2/8/2016 0004622  POWERS-RANG, LISA EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  444.20
Total :  444.20

 165340 2/8/2016 0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING 7653224 DEC 2015/PUBLICATIONS-ACCT#80125600  459.35
Total :  459.35

 165341 2/8/2016 0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3285630243 ADD ROLL/PENS/PAPER CLIPS/ORGANIZER  15.17
 17.83HIGHLIGHTERS3285630244

Total :  33.00

Bank total :  33,764.58 16 Vouchers for bank code : bank

2Page:
32



02/08/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

3

 3:40:17PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 33,764.58Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 16

3Page:
33



02/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 3:04:11PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165330 2/2/2016 0008109  PIONEER AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES 020116 LIGHTING ELECTRICITY CHARGE REIMBURSEMEN 750.00
Total :  750.00

 165342 2/9/2016 0000950  LICENSING, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 020516 CONCEALED WEAPONS PERMITS  1,464.00
Total :  1,464.00

 165343 2/10/2016 0000860  STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 013116 LONG TERM DISABILITY  4,653.54
Total :  4,653.54

 165344 2/10/2016 0000066  AWC EMPLOYEES BENEFITS TRUST 020916 PREMIUMS  40.28
Total :  40.28

 165345 2/10/2016 0006845  48 NORTH 34708 FEB 2016/ADVERTISING  555.00
Total :  555.00

 165346 2/10/2016 0007449  A-1 PERFORMANCE, INC 24020 JAN 2016 JANITORIAL SERVICES  491.92
 3,066.58JAN 2016 JANITORIAL SERVICES24094

Total :  3,558.50

 165347 2/10/2016 0005405  AGRICULTURE, UNITED STATES DEPT OF 3001864228 APHIS  33.94
Total :  33.94

 165348 2/10/2016 0000424  ALL BATTERY SALES AND SERVICE 51166996 BATTERIES  1,278.31
Total :  1,278.31

 165349 2/10/2016 0000034  AMERICAN PLANNING ASSOCIATION 136311-15104 2016 MEMBERSHIP/LEFEVRE  482.50
Total :  482.50

 165350 2/10/2016 0000042  ANACORTES, CITY OF 900-9080-00 JAN 2016 WATER PURCHASED  129,500.00
 1,177.57JAN 2016 WATER PURCHASED901-9080-01

 12,446.33JAN 2016 WATER PURCHASED901-9080-02
Total :  143,123.90

 165351 2/10/2016 0004256  ARSON INVESTIGATORS, INTERNATIONAL ASSOC OF86033 MEMBERSHIP DUES  140.00
Total :  140.00

 165352 2/10/2016 0000065  AVOCET ENVIRONMENTAL TESTING 1600089-IN TESTING  132.00

1Page:
34



02/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

 3:04:11PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  132.00 165352 2/10/2016 0000065 0000065  AVOCET ENVIRONMENTAL TESTING

 165353 2/10/2016 0000069  BAILEY, MICHAEL EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  151.31
Total :  151.31

 165354 2/10/2016 0000083  BAZA, ALVIN 020516 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165355 2/10/2016 0008036  BECKER, PAT 1 TRAVEL REFUND  90.00
Total :  90.00

 165356 2/10/2016 0000112  BOB BARKER COMPANY, INC WEB000410398 SANDALS/RAZORS/SOCKS  224.77
 89.96RAZORSWEB000410537

Total :  314.73

 165357 2/10/2016 0002551  BOS, BRYON 020516 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165358 2/10/2016 0001558  BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC 82039319 MEDSTROM KIT/BP SYSTEM  270.62
Total :  270.62

 165359 2/10/2016 0003097  BOYER, TALLIE 020516 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165360 2/10/2016 0002943  BRAUNSTEIN, ANGELA TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  133.50
Total :  133.50

 165361 2/10/2016 0007926  BROWN, MICHAEL EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  80.46
Total :  80.46

 165362 2/10/2016 0000962  BUILDING OFFICIALS, WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF020416 REGISTRATION/WEST  350.00
Total :  350.00

 165363 2/10/2016 0002644  C JOHNSON CONSTRUCTION, INC 4175 SWEEPER WASTE  1,522.88
Total :  1,522.88

 165364 2/10/2016 0000627  CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 670454 SUPPLIES  303.73
Total :  303.73

2Page:
35



02/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

3

 3:04:11PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165365 2/10/2016 0007943  CAUFFMAN, GIDEON 020516 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165366 2/10/2016 0004605  CEMEX 9432528212 MATERIAL  1,683.50
 820.46MATERIAL9432535174

 1,084.55MATERIAL9432540527
Total :  3,588.51

 165367 2/10/2016 0000188  CODE PUBLISHING COMPANY 51957 MUNICIPAL CODE UPDATES  208.16
 230.99MUNICIPAL CODE UPDATES52098

Total :  439.15

 165368 2/10/2016 0005773  COMCAST 8498300270032028 XFINITY  19.32
 241.37COMCAST BUSINESS SERVICE8498300271046803
 241.15INTERNET8498300290363841

Total :  501.84

 165369 2/10/2016 0000197  CONCRETE NORWEST 1448548 PIT RUN  503.45
 326.10CONCRETE1448598

Total :  829.55

 165370 2/10/2016 0002357  CORRECT EQUIPMENT 32572 ALARM SYSTEM/RELAYS  3,179.48
Total :  3,179.48

 165371 2/10/2016 0000220  CUMMINS NORTHWEST, INC 010-14692 REGISTRATION  521.76
Total :  521.76

 165372 2/10/2016 0000256  DAY WIRELESS SYSTEMS 401049 DISPLAY MAINTENANCE  466.01
Total :  466.01

 165373 2/10/2016 0000247  DIAMOND RENTALS 1-509920-33 DEC 2015 PORTABLES  60.00
 60.00PORTABLES1-533127
 60.00DEC 2015 PORTABLES1-533144-2

Total :  180.00

 165374 2/10/2016 0008119  DIAMOND, JOHN 6166 MOORAGE REFUND  120.92
Total :  120.92

3Page:
36



02/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

4

 3:04:11PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165375 2/10/2016 0000257  DUTCH MAID CLEANERS 1099 LAUNDRY SERVICES  6.52
Total :  6.52

 165376 2/10/2016 0005622  EC POWER SYSTEMS 420062 REGULATOR REPAIR  1,416.30
Total :  1,416.30

 165377 2/10/2016 0000273  EDGE ANALYTICAL, INC 16-00163 TESTING  1,540.00
Total :  1,540.00

 165378 2/10/2016 0005422  ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE ASSOC 777413 TESTING  506.83
Total :  506.83

 165379 2/10/2016 0002900  FASTENAL WAOAK22069 GLOVES/SLVRWLDHLMT  151.76
 21.41FASTENERSWAOAK22075
 14.61FASTENERSWAOAK22131

 110.97FASTENERSWAOAK22143
Total :  298.75

 165380 2/10/2016 0000308  FEDERAL EXPRESS 5-296-05548 SHIPPING  114.73
Total :  114.73

 165381 2/10/2016 0006661  FIELD TRAINING OFFICERS, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF1745 MEMBERSHIP/ESPARZA  40.00
Total :  40.00

 165382 2/10/2016 0000956  FINANCE OFFICERS, WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF1330595-84621010 MEMBERSHIP/NITCHER  50.00
Total :  50.00

 165383 2/10/2016 0000954  FIRE CHIEFS, WASHINGTON STATE ASSOC OF6463 REGISTRATION/BRAUNSTEIN  375.00
Total :  375.00

 165384 2/10/2016 0000314  FISHERIES SUPPLY COMPANY 3451335 GLOVES  128.06
Total :  128.06

 165385 2/10/2016 0008114  FORBES, JOYCE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  45.00
Total :  45.00

 165386 2/10/2016 0008122  FRONDOZO, KEVIN 020516 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

4Page:
37



02/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

5

 3:04:11PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  20.00 165386 2/10/2016 0008122 0008122  FRONDOZO, KEVIN

 165387 2/10/2016 0000355  FRONTIER 240-2350 CURRENT PHONE CHARGES  1,401.59
 67.59CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-1060

 247.10CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1568
 65.79CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1669
 42.40CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-5190
 64.64CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-6858
 75.76CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-0500
 64.81CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1640
 64.64CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1651
 64.81CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1789
 65.79CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-2530

 405.11CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-2628
 69.24CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-3902
 92.72CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-8477

Total :  2,791.99

 165388 2/10/2016 0000329  GALLS 004769567 PANTS  85.81
 85.81PANTS004816026

Total :  171.62

 165389 2/10/2016 0001706  GARDNER, PAT EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  1,762.50
 1,890.00EXP REIMBEXP REIMB

 360.00EXP REIMBEXP REIMB2
 761.00EXP REIMBEXP REIMB3

Total :  4,773.50

 165390 2/10/2016 0006977  GEOLINE, INC 335705 FILTER KIT/REPAIRS  414.27
Total :  414.27

 165391 2/10/2016 0000340  GIFFORD, KATHY 020516 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165392 2/10/2016 0000349  GRAINGER 9007717458 RING BUOY  236.10
 121.53RING BUOY9007717466
 72.52DANGER TAGS9007717474
 24.97TRAFFIC SIGN9011603868

5Page:
38



02/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

6

 3:04:11PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165392 2/10/2016 (Continued)0000349  GRAINGER
 23.97TRAFFIC SIGN9011603876

 108.26TRAFFIC SIGN9011603884
Total :  587.35

 165393 2/10/2016 0008121  GRANICUS, INC 71111 2016 SOFTWARE  2,700.00
Total :  2,700.00

 165394 2/10/2016 0000999  GRCC/WW 149769 REGISTRATION/POLLOCK  380.00
 380.00REGISTRATION/CARROLL149845

Total :  760.00

 165395 2/10/2016 0000345  GREATER OAK HBR CHAMBER OF COM 012916 REIMBURSEMENT  8,333.34
Total :  8,333.34

 165396 2/10/2016 0000694  HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS F026238 BOLTS/NUTS  410.31
Total :  410.31

 165397 2/10/2016 0000380  HEALTH, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 62650 C OPERATING PERMIT FEE  9,791.30
Total :  9,791.30

 165398 2/10/2016 0008116  HINER, JOHN 1738 MOORAGE REFUND  124.06
Total :  124.06

 165399 2/10/2016 0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 1093619 TALL STAT -18.17
 281.536 PC COMBO1563785
 52.59CGPHSD/SDVR ST1581446
 9.70WAND1974253

 32.22LABELS3023303
 18.17TALL STAT3563710
 30.93PUTTY KNIFE/CLRCHGWB/SPACKLING/STUD SOLV3591295
 15.01RETURN AIR/EZ TAP5040225
 48.75PRODUCTS7023971

 926.34MANAGER I CO/ADHESIVE7084864
 10.84EXTDECK7084865

Total :  1,407.91

 165400 2/10/2016 0005250  HONEYMOON BAY COFFEE ROASTERS 426598 COFFEE SUPPLIES  93.22

6Page:
39



02/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

7

 3:04:11PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  93.22 165400 2/10/2016 0005250 0005250  HONEYMOON BAY COFFEE ROASTERS

 165401 2/10/2016 0006520  HOPKINS, CAMERON 020516 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165402 2/10/2016 0000397  ID CHECKING GUIDE 688859 2016 ID CHECKING GUIDE  29.95
Total :  29.95

 165403 2/10/2016 0000417  INDUSTRIAL BOLT & SUPPLY 607425-1 SWIVEL/CONN/CAP/HOUSING/WEDGE  487.15
Total :  487.15

 165404 2/10/2016 0003973  INTEGRA CHEMICAL COMPANY 0117797-IN VITA-D-CHLOR  192.87
Total :  192.87

 165405 2/10/2016 0000410  ISLAND COUNTY SOLID WASTE 013116 JAN 2016 TIPPING FEES  69,140.88
Total :  69,140.88

 165406 2/10/2016 0000411  ISLAND COUNTY TREASURER 020116 CRIME VICTIM COMPENSATION  150.05
Total :  150.05

 165407 2/10/2016 0005445  ISLAND DEFENSE, PLLC 014 JAN 2016/PUBLIC DEFENSE  10,000.00
Total :  10,000.00

 165408 2/10/2016 0000415  ISLAND DISPOSAL 020116 JAN 2016 RECYCLING  5,299.65
Total :  5,299.65

 165409 2/10/2016 0008112  JACKSON, JOHN 28-038000-14 UTILITY REFUND  233.46
Total :  233.46

 165410 2/10/2016 0007313  JASIS, GENEVIEVE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  45.00
Total :  45.00

 165411 2/10/2016 0008117  JENSEN, RICHARD 151 MOORAGE REFUND  292.98
Total :  292.98

 165412 2/10/2016 0000454  JET CITY EQUIPMENT RENTAL 21019 DUMPING  21.74
Total :  21.74

 165413 2/10/2016 0003910  KINNEBREW, ROSE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  121.00

7Page:
40



02/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

8

 3:04:11PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  121.00 165413 2/10/2016 0003910 0003910  KINNEBREW, ROSE

 165414 2/10/2016 0000487  KROESEN'S INC 30811 SHIRTS  52.78
Total :  52.78

 165415 2/10/2016 0005277  LEE, STEPHANIE 020516 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165416 2/10/2016 0000506  LEIRA 020316 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL  200.00
Total :  200.00

 165417 2/10/2016 0004502  LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS 1404645-20160131 JAN 2016/MINIMUM COMMITMENT  54.35
Total :  54.35

 165418 2/10/2016 0000221  LN CURTIS & SONS 2132580-00 NAMETAG  40.99
Total :  40.99

 165419 2/10/2016 0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY 109646 YARD WASTE  125.20
 138.50YARD WASTE109670
 140.95YARD WASTE109687
 132.90YARD WASTE109706
 161.60YARD WASTE109717
 10.00YARD WASTE109788
 20.00YARD WASTE109795
 10.00YARD WASTE109802
 10.00YARD WASTE110104
 10.00YARD WASTE110109
 47.78SOIL110258

Total :  806.93

 165420 2/10/2016 0000660  MARKET PLACE FOOD & DRUG 700770 GROCERIES  387.66
 542.56GROCERIES701728

Total :  930.22

 165421 2/10/2016 0007306  MASSEY, MEG TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  49.00
Total :  49.00

 165422 2/10/2016 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC P43491 JAN 2016 POSTAGE FOR STATEMENTS  3,016.93

8Page:
41



02/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

9

 3:04:11PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  3,016.93 165422 2/10/2016 0006072 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC

 165423 2/10/2016 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC 43491 JAN 2016/MAILING SERVICES FOR STATEMENTS  897.10
Total :  897.10

 165424 2/10/2016 0000558  MERRILL, RAY TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  333.00
 115.50TRAVEL ADVANCETRAVEL ADVANCE

Total :  448.50

 165425 2/10/2016 0000561  MERRIMAN, DOUGLAS 020516 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
 65.81EXP REIMBEXP REIMB

 173.40TRAVEL REIMBTRAVEL REIMB
Total :  259.21

 165426 2/10/2016 0000565  MICROFLEX, INC 00022228 2016 ONLINE SERVICE FEE  1,304.40
Total :  1,304.40

 165427 2/10/2016 0003369  MICRON CONSUMER PRODUCTS GROUP 251946276 8GB DDR  79.98
 50.998GB DDR251949500

Total :  130.97

 165428 2/10/2016 0006992  MOON, ANDREW 020516 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165429 2/10/2016 0007979  MYERS, JACK 1 TRAVEL REFUND  45.00
Total :  45.00

 165430 2/10/2016 0007586  NAGEL, GARRETT 020516 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165431 2/10/2016 0000623  NITCHER, WENDY 020516 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165432 2/10/2016 0000630  NORTHEND TRUCK EQUIPMENT, INC 1032277 SERVICE BODY TRANSFER  1,773.44
 2,720.00SUB FRAME SKID1032286

Total :  4,493.44

 165433 2/10/2016 0003167  NORTHERN SAFETY CO, INC 901773367 MASK RESPIR  413.98

9Page:
42



02/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

10

 3:04:11PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  413.98 165433 2/10/2016 0003167 0003167  NORTHERN SAFETY CO, INC

 165434 2/10/2016 0006855  NORTHWEST YACHTING MAGAZINE 50011 ADVERTISING  574.00
Total :  574.00

 165435 2/10/2016 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE 266356 BATTERY/TACK CLOTH  7.91
 4.66SCREWS266367

 22.59OIL/SOFTIP ANGLE266465
 20.63WAX/STEELWOOL266468
 30.39HANDLE/PUSHBROOM266519
 35.90SANDING BLOCK/BATTERIES/TIE WRAP266525
 7.58NIPPLES266528
 5.18BUSHINGS/CAP266544

 21.69GLIDE NAILON/OIL266640
 145.48SHARPENING266685
 32.10BLEACH/SPRAYER/WIPES266699
 92.37MBUS REAR266716
 3.58BOLT266718

 70.64FAN266728
 89.10WYE/COUPLE/PIPE266736
 14.99TAPE/LOOM/TIE WRAP266740
 30.39CAR WASH/POLISH266763
 8.14POLISH266768
 3.25SPRAYPAINT266795
 2.71EXT SNAP266807

 16.28BLEACH/PRIMER266826
 31.49SCOOP/BROOM/DUSTPAN266834
 10.32CONCRETE PATCH266861
 18.47FACE MASK266896
 26.06WEDGES266903
 23.35GLOVES/HAMMERITE266906
 15.09FASTENERS266908
 35.85NUTS/BOLTS266920
 34.76BATTERY/SCREWDRIVER SET266942
 15.14THREAD SEAL TAPE/PLUG/PIPE266983
 9.77TWINE267000
 5.41ENGINE SPRAY/FOAM267022

10Page:
43



02/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

11

 3:04:11PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  891.27 165435 2/10/2016 0000672 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE

 165436 2/10/2016 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER 001-262795 FILTERS  18.98
-5.22FILTERS001-262797

 15.22AUTOMOTIVE XL VB001-263082
 10.01AUTOMOTIVE XL VB001-263155
 25.23AUTOMOTIVE XL VB001-263156
 19.27SPRAY TRIM ADHES001-263191
 44.62FILTERS001-263237
 92.69FLASHER001-263346
 12.96FILTERS001-263355
 4.1510 AMP FAST ACTI001-263751

 14.41BEAM/CPSL001-263815
 27.72FILTERS001-263819
 10.81ELECTRICAL PROD001-263868

Total :  290.85

 165437 2/10/2016 0000676  OAK HARBOR POLICE DEPARTMENT 013116 PETTY CASH  29.99
Total :  29.99

 165438 2/10/2016 0007548  OFFICE AUTOMATION SYSTEMS 108755 CONTRACT SERVICES  392.30
Total :  392.30

 165439 2/10/2016 0000665  OFFICEMAX, INC 032248 CABLE -28.90
 69.92DVD/MOUSE131369
 16.28TAPE525515

Total :  57.30

 165440 2/10/2016 0001377  ORCA INFORMATION 416374 ZYLSTRA  75.00
 37.00LEE416791

Total :  112.00

 165441 2/10/2016 0002985  PACIFIC TIRE CO. INC 0095662 TIRES  46.66
 1,572.71TIRES0095663

Total :  1,619.37

 165442 2/10/2016 0001218  PBY MEMORIAL ASSOCIATION 020416 REIMBURSEMENT  7,685.21

11Page:
44



02/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

12

 3:04:11PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  7,685.21 165442 2/10/2016 0001218 0001218  PBY MEMORIAL ASSOCIATION

 165443 2/10/2016 0001284  PHILIPS HEALTHCARE 932306370 BATTERIES  426.40
Total :  426.40

 165444 2/10/2016 0004418  PIONEER TREE SERVICE & 14166 TREE SERVICES  1,087.00
Total :  1,087.00

 165445 2/10/2016 0000299  PLACE, SANDRA 020516 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165446 2/10/2016 0000729  POSTMASTER 012516 POSTAGE  300.00
Total :  300.00

 165447 2/10/2016 0008113  POULSEN, CONSTANCE 1601 WORKSHOP  2,000.00
Total :  2,000.00

 165448 2/10/2016 0000732  POWERS, RICHARD S. 020516 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
 139.50TRAVEL REIMBTRAVEL REIMB

Total :  159.50

 165449 2/10/2016 0004622  POWERS-RANG, LISA 020516 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165450 2/10/2016 0008120  POWER-X 020416 HYDRANT DEPOSIT REIMBURSEMENT  905.90
Total :  905.90

 165451 2/10/2016 0000746  PUGET SAFETY EQUIPMENT 0031238-IN VESTS  143.77
Total :  143.77

 165452 2/10/2016 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 200000881421 ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR DISPLT  1,789.19
 13.56ELECTRICITY/WELL #7200003131170
 13.56ELECTRICITY/WELL #6200010549943

 13,585.52ELECTRICITY/STREET LIGHTS300000007421
 64.89ELECTRICITY/STREET LIGHTS300000007421

Total :  15,466.72

 165453 2/10/2016 0007944  RAMIREZ, JOSEPH EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  100.00

12Page:
45



02/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

13

 3:04:11PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  100.00 165453 2/10/2016 0007944 0007944  RAMIREZ, JOSEPH

 165454 2/10/2016 0002508  RINEY PRODUCTION SERVICES 10-1624 TAPING SERVICES  2,452.19
Total :  2,452.19

 165455 2/10/2016 0003024  ROBBINS, EPHRAIM 020516 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165456 2/10/2016 0000780  SABALAUSKY, JANET TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  96.00
Total :  96.00

 165457 2/10/2016 0000781  SAFEWAY 804466 GROCERIES  90.40
Total :  90.40

 165458 2/10/2016 0000789  SCHAEFER SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL PCINV015737 BAR CARTS  29,927.83
Total :  29,927.83

 165459 2/10/2016 0008118  SCHISLER, JERRY 5496 MOORAGE REFUND  18.22
Total :  18.22

 165460 2/10/2016 0000797  SCHOLTEN ROOFING INC 17170 ROOF  12,174.40
Total :  12,174.40

 165461 2/10/2016 0000796  SCHROER, PAUL 020516 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165462 2/10/2016 0000852  SENIOR CENTER PETTY CASH 013116 PETTY CASH  143.73
Total :  143.73

 165463 2/10/2016 0000814  SKAGIT FARMERS SUPPLY 442966 PROPANE  27.31
 65.11BEDDING PELLETS443729

Total :  92.42

 165464 2/10/2016 0000833  SKAGIT HYDRAULICS 135172 O-RING  3.56
-50.00RETURN135216

 205.08O-RINGS136575
 336.87POLYPAK136576

13Page:
46



02/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

14

 3:04:11PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  495.51 165464 2/10/2016 0000833 0000833  SKAGIT HYDRAULICS

 165465 2/10/2016 0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING WCW678958 CITY ORDINANCES  35.32
 158.24CITY NOTICESWCW679360

Total :  193.56

 165466 2/10/2016 0008115  SPECIAL AGENTS, INC 2582 MOORAGE REFUND  327.89
Total :  327.89

 165467 2/10/2016 0007744  SPILLMAN NORTHWEST USERS GROUP 012716 2016 REGISTRATION FEES  100.00
Total :  100.00

 165468 2/10/2016 0000860  STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 012116 LIFE/POCFF  333.13
Total :  333.13

 165469 2/10/2016 0007203  STANFORD, TRAVIS 020516 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165470 2/10/2016 0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3288909345 FILE RAIL/PENCIL CUP/HIGHLIGHTERS/ENVELO  540.21
 380.40PRINTER3288909346

 2,743.95PRIVACY FILTERS3288909347
 73.36PAPER3289506484
 31.02HEATER/ERASERS3289506488
 92.07TONER3289506489
 32.74STAMP3289506490

 156.18TONER3289506492
 28.61REFILL/STAPLERS3289506493

 465.64CHAIRS3289506494
 438.99TONER3289506495
 45.23LABELS3290165351
 36.59MOUSE/PENS3290721837
 9.88FILE WIRE3290721838

 23.02FLASH DRIVE3290721839
 55.62PENS/PREP PADS/DRESSING/FIRST AID3290721840
 34.32STND DAY3290721842

Total :  5,187.83

 165471 2/10/2016 0003749  STUMP, PATRICK L 1 DRIVING SERVICES  114.00

14Page:
47



02/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

15

 3:04:11PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  114.00 165471 2/10/2016 0003749 0003749  STUMP, PATRICK L

 165472 2/10/2016 0000874  SURETY PEST CONTROL 1090794 PEST EXTERMINATION  30.44
 43.48PEST EXTERMINATION1090797
 38.05PEST EXTERMINATION1090798
 43.48PEST EXTERMINATION1090800
 32.61PEST EXTERMINATION1090803
 30.44PEST EXTERMINATION1090811

Total :  218.50

 165473 2/10/2016 0001938  TECHNICAL SYSTEMS, INC 15539 NORTH RESERVOIR SERVICE  970.00
Total :  970.00

 165474 2/10/2016 0001053  TREASURER, WASHINGTON STATE 020116 COURT/BC FEES  8,140.27
Total :  8,140.27

 165475 2/10/2016 0000904  TRICO HEATING, INC 009168 FAN/MOTOR  325.01
Total :  325.01

 165476 2/10/2016 0000922  UNUM LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 011816 LONG TERM CARE  338.12
Total :  338.12

 165477 2/10/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485591000119689 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  2,675.00
Total :  2,675.00

 165478 2/10/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485590002431076 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  2,622.28
Total :  2,622.28

 165479 2/10/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485591001332901 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  2,369.33
Total :  2,369.33

 165480 2/10/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485590100104948 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  366.02
Total :  366.02

 165481 2/10/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485591000646855 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  259.35
Total :  259.35

 165482 2/10/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485591000222970 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  204.00

15Page:
48



02/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

16

 3:04:11PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  204.00 165482 2/10/2016 0004903 0004903  US BANK

 165483 2/10/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485590002304679 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  18.73
Total :  18.73

 165484 2/10/2016 0006156  US POSTAL SERVICE - HASLER 020816 POSTAGE/#182677  3,000.00
Total :  3,000.00

 165485 2/10/2016 0000930  USPS FEE RENEWALS 012016 PERMIT #29  225.00
Total :  225.00

 165486 2/10/2016 0000937  VALLEY FREIGHTLINER, INC 2260210014 SPEEDO ELEC UP7  187.91
Total :  187.91

 165487 2/10/2016 0007940  VON GREY, PETER EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  32.50
Total :  32.50

 165488 2/10/2016 0001044  WASHINGTON CRIMINAL JUSTICE 201125756 REGISTRATION/VALENZUELA  95.00
Total :  95.00

 165489 2/10/2016 0007809  WEST, CODY 020516 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165490 2/10/2016 0003067  WHIDBEY ANIMALS' IMPROVEMENT 1290 JAN 2016/ANIMAL SHELTER  8,333.37
Total :  8,333.37

 165491 2/10/2016 0001000  WHIDBEY AUTO PARTS, INC. 272732 NUTS BOL  5.80
 2.41NUTS BOL272827

Total :  8.21

 165492 2/10/2016 0001017  WHIDBEY PRINTERS 48231 BUSINESS CARDS/TESCH  59.79
Total :  59.79

 165493 2/10/2016 0001010  WHIDBEY TELECOM 3950457 CURRENT NET SERVICES  41.45
 65.23ALARM MONITORING3953342

Total :  106.68

 165494 2/10/2016 0004961  WOODWARD, GREGORY 020516 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

16Page:
49



02/10/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

17

 3:04:11PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  20.00 165494 2/10/2016 0004961 0004961  WOODWARD, GREGORY

 165495 2/10/2016 0006775  WORKSAFE SERVICE, INC 220191 DRUG TESTS  52.00
Total :  52.00

Bank total :  420,250.77 155 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 420,250.77Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 155

17Page:
50



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Resolution 16-09: Signature 
Authority for SRF Loan 
#WQC-2016-OakHar-00240

FROM: Dr. Doug Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Resolution 16-09 Authorizing the City Administrator to sign Water Quality Combined Assistance 
Agreement #WQC-2016-OakHarbor-00240 (SRF).

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Finance and Engineering staff at the City of Oak Harbor have applied to the Washington State 
Department of Ecology (DOE) for funding, through the 2016 Water Quality Combined Financial 
Assistance program, to assist in obtaining federal funding for the Clean Water Facility construction

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.c
Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Resolution 16-09: Signature 
Authority for SRF Loan 
#WQC-2016-OakHar-00240

FROM: Dr. Doug Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Resolution 16-09 Authorizing the City Administrator to sign Water Quality Combined Assistance 
Agreement #WQC-2016-OakHarbor-00240 (SRF).

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Finance and Engineering staff at the City of Oak Harbor have applied to the Washington State 
Department of Ecology (DOE) for funding, through the 2016 Water Quality Combined Financial 
Assistance program, to assist in obtaining federal funding for the Clean Water Facility constructionAssistance program, to assist in obtaining federal funding for the Clean Water Facility construction 
project.  After submittal of the application, receipt of a proposed funding package from DOE, and after
negotiations with DOE on the details of the funding package, City staff requests that the City Council 
authorize the City Administrator to sign the contracting documents to receive the proposed funding.

The $20,882,311 funding package consists of the following elements:

1) SRF Forgivable Principle Loan (Grant) - no match required:  $463,154.00

2) Centennial Grant-no match required:  $4,586,846.00

3) State Revolving Loan-CWSRF-2016:  $15,832,311.00, 1.9% effective interest rate, 20 year term.

Draft Agreement WQC-2016-OakHar-00240 is attached for review.  

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
The fiscal impact of this action will result in the following:

1) Establishes eligibility to receive $5,050,000 in grants and forgivable principle funds.

2)  Will authorize City of Oak Harbor Fund 402 - Waste Water Fund to incur $15,832,311 in SRF 

Assistance program, to assist in obtaining federal funding for the Clean Water Facility construction 
project.  After submittal of the application, receipt of a proposed funding package from DOE, and after 
negotiations with DOE on the details of the funding package, City staff requests that the City Council 
authorize the City Administrator to sign the contracting documents to receive the proposed funding.

The $20,882,311 funding package consists of the following elements:

1) SRF Forgivable Principle Loan (Grant) - no match required:  $463,154.00

2) Centennial Grant-no match required:  $4,586,846.00

3) State Revolving Loan-CWSRF-2016:  $15,832,311.00, 1.9% effective interest rate, 20 year term.

Draft Agreement WQC-2016-OakHar-00240 is attached for review.  

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
The fiscal impact of this action will result in the following:

1) Establishes eligibility to receive $5,050,000 in grants and forgivable principle funds.

2)  Will authorize City of Oak Harbor Fund 402 - Waste Water Fund to incur $15,832,311 in SRF 

51



2) Will authorize City of Oak Harbor Fund 402 - Waste Water Fund to incur $15,832,311 in SRF
funding for the Clean Water Facility.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. SRF Loan #WQC-2016-OakHarbor-00240
2. Resolution No. 16-09

2) Will authorize City of Oak Harbor Fund 402 - Waste Water Fund to incur $15,832,311 in SRF
funding for the Clean Water Facility.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. SRF Loan #WQC-2016-OakHarbor-00240
2. Resolution No. 16-09

52

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=3507ae08e21f08e45e749bfbadb2ed75&aName=1455307641_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=3507ae08e21f08e45e749bfbadb2ed75&aName=1455311546_at.pdf


Agreement No: WQC-2016-OakHar-00240 Page 1 of 11 
Project Title: City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Recipient Name: City of Oak Harbor 

Draft Agreement WQC-2016-OakHar-00240 

WATER QUALITY COMBINED FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY 

AND 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

This is a binding Agreement entered into by and between the State of Washington, Department of Ecology, hereinafter 
referred to as “ECOLOGY” and the City of Oak Harbor, hereinafter referred to as the "RECIPIENT" to carry out with the 
provided funds activities described herein. 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

Project Title: City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Total Cost: $82,640,000.00 
Total Eligible Cost: $82,640,000.00 
Ecology Share:  $ 
Recipient Share: $ 
The Effective Date of this Agreement is:  07/01/2014 
The Expiration Date of this Agreement is no later than: 12/31/2018 
Project Type:  Wastewater Facility 

Project Short Description: 
This Project will construct a new membrane bioreactor (MBR) facility that will replace the RECIPIENT’S existing 
facilities (lagoon and RBC) to provide continued reliable wastewater service to the community of Oak Harbor while 
protecting and preserving the surrounding environment (Puget Sound, Oak and Crescent Harbors).  The new facility will 
meet modern standards for reliability and performance. 

Project Long Description: 
The RECIPIENT’S wastewater system serves approximately 22,300 people within the City of Oak Harbor and the U.S. 
Navy Seaplane Base. Wastewater is currently treated at two facilities: a rotating biological contactor (RBC) facility near 

53



Agreement No: WQC-2016-OakHar-00240 Page 2 of 11 
Project Title: City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Recipient Name: City of Oak Harbor 

Windjammer Park (RBC Plant), and the Navy’s Seaplane Base Lagoon Plant (Lagoon Plant).  This project will construct a 
new membrane bioreactor (MBR) wastewater treatment facility to replace the RECIPIENT’S existing facilities (lagoon 
and RBC) in order to provide continued reliable wastewater service to the City of Oak Harbor while protecting and 
preserving the surrounding environment.  The new facility will meet modern standards for reliability and performance.   

Wastewater flows and loads treated at the RECIPIENT’S two facilities are approaching permitted design limits and many 
of the components at each facility have reached the end of their useful life.  The RECIPIENT’S 2008 Comprehensive 
Sewer Plan recommended constructing improvements to the RECIPIENT’S treatment facilities.  The 2013 facilities plan 
(engineering report) evaluated various sites and technologies and recommended construction of a new MBR plant in the 
vicinity of Windjammer Park as the preferred alternative for a new facility.   The site location was further refined during 
the pre-design phase to a +/- 2.5 acre site adjacent to the existing RBC plant after exploring environmental, cultural, 
technical and cost factors. The proposed MBR treatment facility will significantly improve the effluent quality over the 
existing RBC and Lagoon facilities and provide long-term reliability. 

Part of the RECIPIENT’S design efforts, funded by ECOLOGY under agreement WQC-2015-OakHar-00021, evaluated 
alternative public works contracting options for use in constructing the new treatment plant.  The analysis recommended 
the use of a General Contractor/Construction Manager (GC/CM) as the preferred delivery alternative for construction of 
the new plant.  GC/CM was determined to be a way to reduce risk, increase cost certainty and to increase overall value to 
the project.  The Capital Project Advisory Review Board (CPARB) Project Review Committee (PRC) approved the 
RECIPIEN’TS use of GC/CM for the project in March 2014 and the RECIPIENT selected Hoffman Construction through 
a competitive process as the GC/CM contractor in July 2014. 

Use of GC/CM contracting will allow the RECIPEINT to undertake some design and construction activities on parallel 
paths.  The RECIPIENT has split the GC/CM contract into eight Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) components, six of 
which are directly related to the construction of the MBR plant and this agreement.  GMP1 includes early procurement of 
the Membrane Bioreactor and Ultraviolet disinfection equipment.  Early procurement of this critical equipment is 
necessary to provide designers with specific constraints on tank designs and on requirements for ancillary equipment.  
GMP2 includes construction activities associated with the new outfall to Oak Harbor, which Ecology is funding under 
agreement WQC-2015-OakHar-000110.  GMP3 includes early site work, shallow excavation and grading necessary to 
prepare the site for construction and to gain further design data needed to mitigate for cultural resources protection and to 
finalize the limits of deep excavation.  GMP4 includes soil stabilization through the installation of stone columns, 
installation of sheet piles, deep excavation, utility relocations and demolishing unused portions of the existing RBC plant 
that are in the way of proposed improvements.  GMP5 includes the procurement of a biosolids dryer.  As with GMP1, 
early procurement of the dryer will assist the design team while adding cost certainty to the project.  GMP6 includes 
installation of micro-piles under the deep structures.  GMP7 and 8 includes construction and commissioning of the new 
MBR treatment plant.  The RECIPIENT anticipates dividing this work into at least two packages to cover different 
elements of facility construction.  The RECIPIENT may choose to divide facility construction work into more than two 
packages as design finalizes.  Finally, GMP9 involves construction activities needed to restore the adjacent Windjammer 
Park and will have limited eligibility for reimbursement under this funding agreement. 

This initial facility construction phase will provide infrastructure needed to treat a maximum monthly design flow of 2.8 
million gallons per day (MGD) and will allow for expansion to 3.2 MGD capacity through the installation of additional 
membrane modules.   

Overall Goal: 
The overall goal of this project is to successfully construct a reliable, long-term facility that obtains the highest level of 
water quality practical while recognizing the limitations of the ratepayers of the City to fund the improvements. 

54



Agreement No: WQC-2016-OakHar-00240 Page 3 of 11 
Project Title: City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Recipient Name: City of Oak Harbor 

RECIPIENT INFORMATION 

Organization Name: City of Oak Harbor 

Federal Tax ID:  91-6001476 
DUNS Number:  054009196 

Mailing Address: 865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

Physical Address: Douglas Merriman 
City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, WA  98277 
Oak Harbor, Washington 98277 

Organization Email: 

Organization Fax: 

Contacts 
Project Manager Joe Stowell 

City Engineer 

865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, Washington 98277 
Email: jstowell@oakharbor.org 
Phone: (360) 279-4520 

Billing Contact Douglas Merriman 
City Administrator 

865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, Washington 98277 
Email: dmerriman@oakharbor.org 
Phone: (360) 279-4531 

55

mailto:jstowell@oakharbor.org
mailto:dmerriman@oakharbor.org


Agreement No: WQC-2016-OakHar-00240 Page 4 of 11 
Project Title: City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant  
Recipient Name: City of Oak Harbor  

 

Authorized 
Signatory 

Douglas Merriman 
City Administrator 
 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, Washington 98277 
Email: dmerriman@oakharbor.org 
Phone: (360) 279-4531 

  

56

mailto:dmerriman@oakharbor.org


Agreement No: WQC-2016-OakHar-00240 Page 5 of 11 
Project Title: City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant  
Recipient Name: City of Oak Harbor  

 
ECOLOGY INFORMATION 
 
 
Mailing Address: Department of Ecology 
   Water Quality 
   PO BOX 47600 
   Olympia, WA  98504-7600 
 
 
Physical Address: Water Quality 
   300 Desmond Drive 
   Lacey, WA  98503 
 
Contacts 
Project 
Manager 

Shawn McKone 
 
3190 160th Ave SE 
Bellevue, Washington 98008-5452 
Email: shawn.mckone@ecy.wa.gov 
Phone: (425) 649-7037 

Financial 
Manager 

Jeanna Ridner 
 
PO Box 47600 
Olympia, Washington, 98504-7600 
Email: jmac461@ecy.wa.gov 
Phone: (360) 407-6533 

57



Agreement No: WQC-2016-OakHar-00240 Page 6 of 11 
Project Title: City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant  
Recipient Name: City of Oak Harbor  

 
BUDGET 
 
Funding Distribution 
 
Funding Title:  
Funding Type:  
Funding Effective Date:      Funding Expiration Date: 
Funding Source:  
 
Recipient Match %: 
InKind Interlocal Allowed:  
InKind Other Allowed:  
Is this Funding Distribution used to match a federal grant? 
 
Effective Interest Rate: % Interest Rate: %  Admin Charge: % 
Terms: years 
Project Start Date:  07/01/2014  Project Completion Date:  12/31/2018 
Estimated Initiation of Operation date:  7/1/2018 
Loan Security 
Final Accrued Interest:  $ 
Final Loan Amount:  $ 
Repayment Schedule Number:  
 
 
Budget Estimate 
for : 

 
Offer list 

 $  
4,586,846.00  

 $  
413,154.00  

 $    
50,000.00  

 $  
150,000.00  

 $  
15,682,311.00  

WQC-2016-
OakHar-00240 

   

 $                                
463,154.00  

 $                                
15,832,311.00  

Elements 
(Tasks) 

Total PROJECT 
Cost 

Total Eligible 
PROJECT Cost 

CCWF 
Hardship 
Grant 

Forgivable 
Principal - 
Hardship 
Loan 
Amount 

Forgivable 
Principal - 
GPR  Loan 
Amount 

Standard 
GPR Loan 
Amount 

Standard Loan 
Amount 

1.  Project 
Administration/
Management 

 $740,000.00   $740,000.00   $                -     $              -     $              -     $              -     $185,199.78  

2.  Construction 
Management 

 $7,500,000.00   $7,500,000.00   $                -     $              -     $              -     $              -     $1,877,024.84  

3.  WWTP 
Construction 

 $74,400,000.00   $74,400,000.00   $4,586,846.00   $413,154.00   $50,000.00   $150,000.00   $13,620,086.38  

Total  $82,640,000.00   $82,640,000.00   $4,586,846.00   $413,154.00   $50,000.00   $150,000.00   $15,682,311.00  

 
 

58



Agreement No: WQC-2016-OakHar-00240 Page 7 of 11 
Project Title: City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant  
Recipient Name: City of Oak Harbor  

 
SCOPE OF WORK 
 
Task Number: 1     Task Cost: $740,000.00 
 
Task Title: Project Administration/Management 
 
Task Description: 
A. The RECIPIENT will administer the project.  Responsibilities will include, but not be limited to:  

maintenance of project records; submittal of requests for reimbursement and corresponding backup 
documentation,  progress reports and recipient closeout report (including photos); compliance with 
applicable procurement, contracting, and interlocal agreement requirements; application for, receipt of, 
and compliance with all required permits, licenses, easements, or property rights necessary for the 
project; and submittal of required performance items. 

 
B. The RECIPIENT must manage the project.  Efforts will include:  conducting, coordinating, and 

scheduling project activities and assuring quality control.  Every effort will be made to maintain 
effective communication with the RECIPIENT's designees; ECOLOGY; all affected local, state, or 
federal jurisdictions; and any interested individuals or groups.  The RECIPIENT must carry out this 
project in accordance with any completion dates outlined in this agreement. 

 
Task Goal Statement: 
Property managed project that meets agreement and ECOLOGY administrative requirements. 
 
 
Task Expected Outcome: 
* Timely and complete submittal of requests for reimbursement, quarterly progress reports and RECIPIENT closeout 
report. 
* Properly maintained project documentation. 
 
 
 
Recipient Task Coordinator: Joe Stowell, P.E., Oak Harbor City Engineer 
 
Project Administration/Management 
 
Deliverables 
Number Description Due Date 

1.1 Progress Reports 12/31/2018 

1.2 Recipient Closeout Report 12/31/2018 

1.3 Project Outcome Summary Report 12/31/2018 

59



Agreement No: WQC-2016-OakHar-00240 Page 8 of 11 
Project Title: City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant  
Recipient Name: City of Oak Harbor  

 
SCOPE OF WORK 
 
Task Number: 2     Task Cost: $7,500,000.00 
 
Task Title: Construction Management 
 
Task Description: 
A. The RECIPIENT will provide adequate and competent construction management and inspection for the project.  This 
may involve procuring professional services.  If procuring professional services, the RECIPIENT will procure them in 
accordance with state law.  The RECIPIENT will include ECOLOGY’s specification insert in the contract document.  The 
RECIPIENT must submit all contracts for construction management services before ECOLOGY will provide 
reimbursement for work performed under this task. 
 
B. The RECIPIENT will develop a detailed Construction Quality Assurance Plan as required by WAC 173-240-075 and 
submit it to ECOLOGY for review.  This plan must describe the activities which the RECIPIENT will undertake to 
achieve adequate and competent oversight of all construction work.   
 
C.  The RECIPIENT will provide a plan of interim operation for the Diversion Pump Station to document how this system 
will remain in continuous operation during construction. 
 
D. The RECIPIENT will ensure construction progresses according to a timely schedule developed to meet completion 
dates indicated in the construction contract.  The RECIPIENT will revise or update the schedule whenever major changes 
occur and resubmit to ECOLOGY.  In the absence of major changes, the RECIPIENT will describe progress of the 
construction in quarterly progress reports. 
 
E. The RECIPIENT will prepare a facility Operations and Maintenance Manual as required by WAC 173-240-080 and as 
generally described in section G1-4.4 of ECOLOGY’s Criteria for Sewage Works Design (Orange Book).  The 
RECIPIENT must provide a complete draft of the O&M manual to ECOLOGY for review prior to start-up testing of the 
facility. 
 
F.  Upon completion of construction, the RECIPIENT will provide ECOLOGY’s Project Manager with a set of "as-built" 
plans (i.e., record construction drawings which reflect changes, modifications, or other significant revisions made to the 
project during construction) 
 
G.  Upon project completion, the RECIPIENT will submit the Declaration of Construction Completion form to 
ECOLOGY in accordance with WAC 173-240-090.  The form, when signed by a professional engineer, indicates that the 
project was completed in accordance with the plans and specifications and major change orders approved by the 
ECOLOGY, and is accurately shown on the as-built plans. 
 
Task Goal Statement: 
Ensure construction contractor completes construction of a new wastewater treatment facility in Oak Harbor consistent 
with the requirements of the approved plans, specifications and change orders in a timely manner. 
 
Task Expected Outcome: 
* Wastewater treatment facility  construction completed according to approved plans, specifications and change orders. 
* Construction completed within scheduled timeline specified in the construction contract. 
* Development of an operations and maintenance manual for the new facility and outfall (funded separately by 
ECOLOGY). 
 
Recipient Task Coordinator: Joe Stowell, P.E., City Engineer 
 

60



Agreement No: WQC-2016-OakHar-00240 Page 9 of 11 
Project Title: City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant  
Recipient Name: City of Oak Harbor  

 
Construction Management 
 
Deliverables 
Number Description Due Date 

2.1 A copy of all executed contracts for engineering services and construction 
management work to be performed under this task.   

12/31/2015 

2.2 Construction Quality Assurance Plan and, if necessary, plan updates. 12/31/2015 

2.3 Plan of Interim Operation for the Diversion Pump Station 12/31/2015 

2.4 Construction schedule and periodic schedule updates 12/31/2015 

2.5 Draft facility Operations and Maintenance Manual 10/31/2017 

2.4 One electronic copy (in PDF) of “as-built” plans.  If the RECIPIENT is unable 
to generate an electronic copy of the “as-built” plans, they may substitute one 
paper copy formatted as half-size drawings. 

12/31/2018 

2.5 Declaration of Construction Completion form to be provided by ECOLOGY. 12/31/2018 

61



Agreement No: WQC-2016-OakHar-00240 Page 10 of 11 
Project Title: City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant  
Recipient Name: City of Oak Harbor  

 
SCOPE OF WORK 
 
Task Number: 3     Task Cost: $74,400,000.00 
 
Task Title: Construction 
 
Task Description: 
A.  The RECIPIENT will execute a contract for GC/CM services for the construction of a new wastewater treatment plant 
according to the rules and restrictions in Chapter 39.10 RCW and as authorized by the Capital Projects Advisory Review 
Board.  The GC/CM contract must include ECOLOGY’s specification inserts and the RECIPIENT must ensure that all 
requests for bids issued by the GC/CM contractor for the project include Ecology’s specification inserts. 
 
B.  The RECIPIENT will complete construction of the Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility, designed under agreement 
WQC-2015-OakHar-00021, in accordance with plans (drawings) and specifications approved by ECOLOGY.  The Oak 
Harbor Clean Water Facility will include, but not be limited to:  wastewater screening, girt removal, membrane bioreactor 
treatment, UV disinfection, odor control, biosolids handling, on-site laboratory, and support buildings for administrative 
and maintenance activities. 
 
The project includes the following items that meet the EPA green project reserve criteria: 

1. Treatment and storage systems to allow use of effluent as non-potable water supply. 
2. Incorporation of bioswales into exterior landscaping to manage stormwater runoff from the facility. 

 
C.  The RECIPIENT will conduct a pre-construction conference and invite ECOLOGY staff to participate. 
 
D.  The RECIPIENT will negotiate all change orders to the construction contract necessary for successful 
completion of the PROJECT.   The RECIPIENT will submit the change orders to ECOLOGY for approval.  
Change orders that are a significant deviation from the approved plans/specifications must be submitted for 
approval, prior to execution.  All other change orders must be submitted within 30 days after execution.  
“Significant deviation” means any change that may result in modifying the approved design details related to 
treatment process components and strategies.  . 
 
Task Goal Statement: 
Construct a new wastewater treatment plant in Oak Harbor in accordance with the approved plans and specifications 
developed under WQC-2015-OakHar-00021. 
 
Task Expected Outcome: 
*Complete installation of a new wastewater treatment plant in Oak Harbor. 
 
Recipient Task Coordinator: Joe Stowell, P.E., City Engineer 
 
Construction 
 
Deliverables 
Number Description Due Date 

3.1 Copy of each Request for Bid package developed and issued by the GC/CM 
contractor for project construction components. 

12/31/2015 

3.2 Copy of each Guaranteed Maximum Price amendment negotiated with the 
GC/CM contractor for the project, including details demonstrating how the 

12/31/2015 

62



Agreement No: WQC-2016-OakHar-00240 Page 11 of 11 
Project Title: City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant  
Recipient Name: City of Oak Harbor  

 
maximum cost was established and describing the process for selecting sub-
contractors. 

3.3 Copy of the Notice to Proceed for each project package. 12/31/2015 

3.4 Minutes of the pre-construction meeting  

3.5 Documentation of the project elements that meet the EPA green project reserve 
criteria. 

 

3.6 Copy of approved change orders. 12/31/2018 

3.7 Copy of the Notice of Substantial Completion. 12/31/2018 

 
 
 

Funding Distribution Name Recipient Match Recipient Share Ecology Share Total 
     

 
 

63



RESOLUTION NO. 16-09 

A RESOLUTION GIVING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR OF THE CITY OF OAK 
HARBOR AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO WATER QUALITY COMBINED FINANCIAL 
ASSISTANCE LOAN AGREEMENTS WQC-2016-0AKHAR-00240 WITH THE STATE OF 
WASHINGTON DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY. 

WHEREAS, the City desires to undertake the design and engineering of a new membrane 
bioreactor (MBR) facility that will replace the existing wastewater treatment facilities to provide 
continued reliable wastewater service to the community of Oak Harbor while protecting and 
preserving the surrounding environment, and 

WHEREAS, the City additionally desires to design and construct a replacement outfall in 
advance of the new wastewater treatment plant, and 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to enter into the Water Quality Financial Assistance Agreement 
WQC-2016-0akHar-00240 (SRF) with the State of Washington Department of Ecology, in the 
total amount of $20,882,311.00, to provide funding for the construction of the new MBR 
wastewater treatment facility. 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR does hereby resolve as follows: 

SECTION ONE: The City of Oak Harbor is hereby authorized to enter into the Water Quality 
Financial Assistance Agreement WQC-2016-0akHar-00240 (SRF) with the State of Washington 
Department of Ecology, in the amount of $20,882,311.00. 

SECTION TWO: The City A d m i n i s t r a t o r  is hereby authorized to s i g n  a n d  
e x e c u t e  t h e  n e c e s s a r y  d o c u m e n t s  t o  enter into the Water Quality Financial 
Assistance Agreement WQC-2016-0akHar-00240 (SRF) with the State of Washington 
Department of Ecology. 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor and approved by its Mayor this 16th 

day of February 2016. 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

BOB SEVERNS, MAYOR 

Attest: Approved as to Form: 

Anna Thompson, City Clerk Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

Introduction: 
Adopted: 
Published: 

64



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Special Event Permit - Race 
Week 2016 Catalina Park 

FROM: Ed Green, Police Chief

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Staff requests that the City Council review and authorize the Mayor or City Administrator to sign the 
Special Event Permit for Race Week 2016 in Catalina Park.  

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
On October 19, 2015 Schelleen Rathkopf, owner of Whidbey Island Race Week, submitted a permit for 
her event to take place in Catalina Park within the City of Oak Harbor for July 10-15, 2016. At the same 
time she submitted an application with a site diagram to the Washington Liquor Control Board for a 
Liquor Banquet Permit.

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.d
Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Special Event Permit - Race 
Week 2016 Catalina Park 

FROM: Ed Green, Police Chief

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Staff requests that the City Council review and authorize the Mayor or City Administrator to sign the 
Special Event Permit for Race Week 2016 in Catalina Park.  

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
On October 19, 2015 Schelleen Rathkopf, owner of Whidbey Island Race Week, submitted a permit for 
her event to take place in Catalina Park within the City of Oak Harbor for July 10-15, 2016. At the same 
time she submitted an application with a site diagram to the Washington Liquor Control Board for a 
Liquor Banquet Permit.Liquor Banquet Permit.

On January 25, 2016 the Liquor Banquet Permit was approved by the Washington State Liquor Control
Board for service of alcohol between July 10-15, 2016 (8:00 AM and 8:00 PM) for this event. The area 
designated for liquor service will be within a fenced and closed off area, inaccessible to the general public 
with systems in place to prevent service to minors (under 21-years of age).

Per the Oak Harbor Municipal Code, section 6.12.080(1) this permit must be reviewed and can only be 
approved by the City Council.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Special Event Permit Race Week 2016

Liquor Banquet Permit.

On January 25, 2016 the Liquor Banquet Permit was approved by the Washington State Liquor Control 
Board for service of alcohol between July 10-15, 2016 (8:00 AM and 8:00 PM) for this event. The area 
designated for liquor service will be within a fenced and closed off area, inaccessible to the general public 
with systems in place to prevent service to minors (under 21-years of age).

Per the Oak Harbor Municipal Code, section 6.12.080(1) this permit must be reviewed and can only be 
approved by the City Council.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Special Event Permit Race Week 2016

65

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=3507ae08e21f08e45e749bfbadb2ed75&aName=1453853494_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=3507ae08e21f08e45e749bfbadb2ed75&aName=1453853565_at.pdf


2. Washington State Liquor and Cannabis Board Banquet Permit Race Week 20162. Washington State Liquor and Cannabis Board Banquet Permit Race Week 2016

66

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=3507ae08e21f08e45e749bfbadb2ed75&aName=1453853565_at.pdf


67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Purchase Authorization-Chevrolet
Colorado Pick-ups

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion authorizing staff to purchase two Chevrolet Colorado pick-ups from Bud Clary Chevrolet off of State 
Contract number 03813 in the amount of $56,240.39. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
On September 1, 2015, staff brought forward the revised pricing for five (5) pick-up trucks.  The pricing for the 
additional two (2) Chevrolet Colorado 2WD trucks that were approved on May 5, 2015 was not opened at that
time; therefore, they could not be ordered.  The contract has now opened up and an increase of price has been
included in the chart below for your review:

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.e
Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Purchase Authorization-Chevrolet 
Colorado Pick-ups

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion authorizing staff to purchase two Chevrolet Colorado pick-ups from Bud Clary Chevrolet off of State 
Contract number 03813 in the amount of $56,240.39. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
On September 1, 2015, staff brought forward the revised pricing for five (5) pick-up trucks.  The pricing for the 
additional two (2) Chevrolet Colorado 2WD trucks that were approved on May 5, 2015 was not opened at that 
time; therefore, they could not be ordered.  The contract has now opened up and an increase of price has been 
included in the chart below for your review:included in the chart below for your review:  

Staff is requesting authorization for the same truck replacements with revised pricing as noted above. 

Funds are available in the Equipment Rental Replacement fund to cover the additional cost.

Number New Truck Previous Amount Current Amount Difference

87 2015 Chevy Colorado 2WD  $     23,256.00 $28,120.19 $4,864.19

10 2015 Chevy Colorado 2WD  $     23,256.00 $28,120.19  $4,864.19

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:         $56,240.39

Appropriation Source:             502.10.594.018.6400

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

included in the chart below for your review:  

Staff is requesting authorization for the same truck replacements with revised pricing as noted above. 

Funds are available in the Equipment Rental Replacement fund to cover the additional cost.

Number New Truck Previous Amount Current Amount Difference

87 2015 Chevy Colorado 2WD  $     23,256.00 $28,120.19 $4,864.19

10 2015 Chevy Colorado 2WD  $     23,256.00 $28,120.19  $4,864.19

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:         $56,240.39

Appropriation Source:             502.10.594.018.6400

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

86



ATTACHMENTSATTACHMENTS

87



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Purchase Authorization-Ford 
Police Interceptor SUV

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion authorizing staff to purchase one (1) Ford Interceptor Utility/SUV off of State Contract number
03713 in the amount of $30,120.40.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The 2015-2016 biennial budgets include the replacement of the remaining patrol vehicle to be used by the 
Police Department.  Over the last two years, the patrol vehicles have been phased in as the funds became 
available in the Equipment Rental replacement fund.  Funds are now available and the State Contract has 
been posted.  

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.f
Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Purchase Authorization-Ford 
Police Interceptor SUV

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion authorizing staff to purchase one (1) Ford Interceptor Utility/SUV off of State Contract number 
03713 in the amount of $30,120.40.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The 2015-2016 biennial budgets include the replacement of the remaining patrol vehicle to be used by the 
Police Department.  Over the last two years, the patrol vehicles have been phased in as the funds became 
available in the Equipment Rental replacement fund.  Funds are now available and the State Contract has 
been posted.  been posted.  

Therefore, staff is requesting to replace the remaining patrol vehicle with another Ford Interceptor 
Utility/SUV’s off of the State Contract.  By purchasing from the State Contract, the City fulfills our 
bidding obligations as required by City ordinance, and also saves costs by allowing the State to perform
the bidding process.  

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: $30,120.40

Appropriation Source:             502.10.594.018.6400

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

been posted.  

Therefore, staff is requesting to replace the remaining patrol vehicle with another Ford Interceptor 
Utility/SUV’s off of the State Contract.  By purchasing from the State Contract, the City fulfills our 
bidding obligations as required by City ordinance, and also saves costs by allowing the State to perform 
the bidding process.  

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: $30,120.40

Appropriation Source:             502.10.594.018.6400

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

88



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Surplus Authorization-Panasonic 
Toughbooks

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion authorizing the surplus and disposal of thirty-one (31) Panasonic Toughbook laptops as 
presented on the attached detailed surplus list.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Each year the City Council declares a list of certain obsolete equipment items as surplus and approves the 
list for disposal, as the equipment has been determined to no longer be of practical use to the City.  

Twenty-five (25) of the laptops have been in service by our Fire and Police Departments for several 
years and are now out of date.  The remaining six (6) are still in service by our Police Department, but

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.g
Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Surplus Authorization-Panasonic 
Toughbooks

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion authorizing the surplus and disposal of thirty-one (31) Panasonic Toughbook laptops as 
presented on the attached detailed surplus list.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Each year the City Council declares a list of certain obsolete equipment items as surplus and approves the 
list for disposal, as the equipment has been determined to no longer be of practical use to the City.  

Twenty-five (25) of the laptops have been in service by our Fire and Police Departments for several 
years and are now out of date.  The remaining six (6) are still in service by our Police Department, butyears and are now out of date.  The remaining six (6) are still in service by our Police Department, but 
will be changed out within the month with Microsoft Surface Pro’s.  

Approximately two years ago, staff began a trial run with the Microsoft Surface Pro’s which has been 
a great success.  By changing out the Panasonic Toughbook’s as they become outdated with this new 
technology, the City has saved approximately $3,700.00 per change out.  There is no longer a need for a
rugged $5,000.00 laptop, when you can purchase a Microsoft Surface Pro for around $1,300.00.  They
are mounted inside the vehicles and we have had no issues with damage relating to sensitivity as of yet.

Staff has listed the laptops on the AWC Surplus site for other agencies to purchase them, but there has 
been no interest.  Therefore, staff will be placing these laptops up for auction on E-bay once surplus is 
approved. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

years and are now out of date.  The remaining six (6) are still in service by our Police Department, but 
will be changed out within the month with Microsoft Surface Pro’s.  

Approximately two years ago, staff began a trial run with the Microsoft Surface Pro’s which has been 
a great success.  By changing out the Panasonic Toughbook’s as they become outdated with this new 
technology, the City has saved approximately $3,700.00 per change out.  There is no longer a need for a 
rugged $5,000.00 laptop, when you can purchase a Microsoft Surface Pro for around $1,300.00.  They 
are mounted inside the vehicles and we have had no issues with damage relating to sensitivity as of yet.

Staff has listed the laptops on the AWC Surplus site for other agencies to purchase them, but there has 
been no interest.  Therefore, staff will be placing these laptops up for auction on E-bay once surplus is 
approved. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

89

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=3507ae08e21f08e45e749bfbadb2ed75&aName=1455040670_at.pdf


1. Panasonic Toughbook Surplus List 20161. Panasonic Toughbook Surplus List 2016

90

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=3507ae08e21f08e45e749bfbadb2ed75&aName=1455040670_at.pdf


ASSET NUMBER SERIAL NUMBER DESCRIPTION COMMENTS
1276 4GKSA47398 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK OUT OF SERVICE
1231 5EKSA21583 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK OUT OF SERVICE
1233 6GKSA52848 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK OUT OF SERVICE
1297 3KKYA05426 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK OUT OF SERVICE
1274 3KKYA05566 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK OUT OF SERVICE
1275 3KKYA05346 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK OUT OF SERVICE
NONE 3KKYA05480 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK OUT OF SERVICE
NONE 3LKYA09089 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK OUT OF SERVICE
NONE 8JKYB98561 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK OUT OF SERVICE
1236 4DKSA37726 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK OUT OF SERVICE
1235 5EKSA21582 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK OUT OF SERVICE
1002 3KKYA05406 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK OUT OF SERVICE
1180 YKKSA06945 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK OUT OF SERVICE
1181 7KKSA06699 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK OUT OF SERVICE
1182 7DKSA32112 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK OUT OF SERVICE
1183 7KKSA06144 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK OUT OF SERVICE
1184 7KKSA06665 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK OUT OF SERVICE
1185 7KKSA06922 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK OUT OF SERVICE
1187 7KKSA06145 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK OUT OF SERVICE
1188 7DKSA30616 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK OUT OF SERVICE
NONE 7DKSA30695 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK OUT OF SERVICE
1190 7DKSA28254 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK OUT OF SERVICE
1191 7KKSA06672 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK OUT OF SERVICE
1192 7KKSA06961 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK OUT OF SERVICE
1259 2AKSA19531 PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK OUT OF SERVICE
1261 DFQX3A14XB PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK IN SERVICE
1194 DFQX3A00XA PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK IN SERVICE
1262 DFQX3A14XB PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK IN SERVICE
1258 DFQX3A14XB PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK IN SERVICE
1260 DFQX3A14XB PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK IN SERVICE
NONE DFQX3A14XB PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK IN SERVICE

TOUGHBOOK SURPLUS LIST 2016

91



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Freedom Properties: Letter of 
Intent to Exercise Option No. 2 
per the Agreement to Extend the 
Lease for a 3-year term

FROM: Edgar J. Green, Chief of Police 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Staff requests that the City Council review and authorize the Mayor to sign the lease extension letter for 
Freedom Properties, LLC (Animal Control Holding Facility).

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Currently the Oak Harbor Police Department is using a leased facility from Freedom Kennels, LLC 
located at 2725 NE Goldie Road, Oak Harbor, WA 98277 for its animal control holding facility. 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.h
Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Freedom Properties: Letter of 
Intent to Exercise Option No. 2 
per the Agreement to Extend the 
Lease for a 3-year term

FROM: Edgar J. Green, Chief of Police 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Staff requests that the City Council review and authorize the Mayor to sign the lease extension letter for 
Freedom Properties, LLC (Animal Control Holding Facility).

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Currently the Oak Harbor Police Department is using a leased facility from Freedom Kennels, LLC 
located at 2725 NE Goldie Road, Oak Harbor, WA 98277 for its animal control holding facility. located at 2725 NE Goldie Road, Oak Harbor, WA 98277 for its animal control holding facility. 

On May 7, 2013 the City Council authorized the Mayor to sign a lease/option to purchase the facility on
Goldie Road. That agreement was for 3 years and expires May 30, 2016.

The City of Oak Harbor can extend the lease at its option for an additional three years with written notice 
to the property owner.  The lease agreement requires the City of Oak Harbor give 90 days’ notice of our 
intent; that 90 day deadline is March 1, 2016. 

Staff is requesting that the City Council consider an extension of the contract for another three years to 
allow additional time to determine the best course of action for establishment of a permanent holding 
facility. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
Fiscal Impact (Budgeted):

$2,500.00 a month

Currently offset by contract with Forest City for Animal Services; approximately $2,666.00 a month. 

located at 2725 NE Goldie Road, Oak Harbor, WA 98277 for its animal control holding facility. 

On May 7, 2013 the City Council authorized the Mayor to sign a lease/option to purchase the facility on 
Goldie Road. That agreement was for 3 years and expires May 30, 2016.

The City of Oak Harbor can extend the lease at its option for an additional three years with written notice 
to the property owner.  The lease agreement requires the City of Oak Harbor give 90 days’ notice of our 
intent; that 90 day deadline is March 1, 2016. 

Staff is requesting that the City Council consider an extension of the contract for another three years to 
allow additional time to determine the best course of action for establishment of a permanent holding 
facility. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
Fiscal Impact (Budgeted):

$2,500.00 a month

Currently offset by contract with Forest City for Animal Services; approximately $2,666.00 a month. 

92



Currently offset by contract with Forest City for Animal Services; approximately $2,666.00 a month. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
Lease for Animal Control Holding Facility with Freedom Kennels, LLC approved by City Council on 
May 7, 2013. 

ATTACHMENTS
1. Letter of Intent to Extend

Currently offset by contract with Forest City for Animal Services; approximately $2,666.00 a month. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
Lease for Animal Control Holding Facility with Freedom Kennels, LLC approved by City Council on 
May 7, 2013. 

ATTACHMENTS
1. Letter of Intent to Extend

93

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=3507ae08e21f08e45e749bfbadb2ed75&aName=1455060628_at.pdf


City of Oak Harbor 

865 S.E. BARRINGTON DRIVE 

OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON 98277 

(360) 279-4502 

February 16, 2016 

Chris Terrell 
Freedom Properties, LLC 
8033 Summit Park Road 
Anacortes, WA 98221 

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 

BOB SEVERNS 
MAYOR 

Re: Notice oflntent to Extend Lease with Option to Purchase 

Mr. Terrell, 

Currently the City of Oak Harbor is leasing with an option to purchase property located at 2725 NE Goldie Road, 
Oak Harbor, WA 98277 for its animal control holding facility. 

On May 7, 2013 the City Council authorized the Mayor to sign the lease agreement for this facility. That agreement 
was for three (3) years expiring on May 30, 2016 with an option to extend the contract. Specifically, Paragraph 2 
"Terms" on Page 1 of the agreement provides that the "lessee shall have the option to extend the lease and purchase 
option for three (3) additional years. The City must provide the lessor with three (3) months written notice of its 
intent to extend the agreement. 

The purpose of this letter is to serve as notice under Paragraph 2 of the agreement that the City is exercising its right 
to extend the lease agreement with option to purchase for another three (3) years commencing on May 31, 2016 and 
ending on May 31, 2019. 

If you have any question, please feel free to contact myself or Chief Green. 

Respectfully, 

Robert Severns 
Mayor 

94



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Signature authority for Change 
Order Proposal (COP) #3 -
Energy Efficiency Project 
(Ameresco)

FROM: Dr. Doug Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize City Administrator to sign Change Order Proposal (COP) #3 with Washington State 
Department of Enterprise Services.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City is nearing the completion of our energy efficiency upgrade project designed to reduce the energy
usage and associated power cost of City-owned facilities.  This proposed change order is a quantitate list

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.i
Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Signature authority for Change 
Order Proposal (COP) #3 -
Energy Efficiency Project 
(Ameresco)

FROM: Dr. Doug Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize City Administrator to sign Change Order Proposal (COP) #3 with Washington State 
Department of Enterprise Services.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City is nearing the completion of our energy efficiency upgrade project designed to reduce the energy 
usage and associated power cost of City-owned facilities.  This proposed change order is a quantitate list usage and associated power cost of City-owned facilities.  This proposed change order is a quantitate list
of sites where materials adjustments needed to be made once technicians performed the proposed field 
work activities.  At some sites, such as the Windmill, the Windjammer eastside restrooms, and the 
parking lot floodlights, the City desired to upgrade or adjust the existing hardware to either provide better
efficiency or to retrofit outdated fixtures.

As can be observed from the attached change order documentation, several of the sites consist of 
upgrades and the associated costs, as well as other sites representing adjustments to the equipment that
actually reduced the original estimated costs.  The net fiscal impact of these equipment adjustments is 
$6,801.12.  With the associated labor, overheard, and other fees, the total amount of COP #3 is 
$11,490.46.  The attached documentation provides a detailed listing of these items.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
The fiscal impact of this change order is $11,490.46.  This cost will be allocated to those locations 
specified in the detailed listing of adjustments.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

usage and associated power cost of City-owned facilities.  This proposed change order is a quantitate list 
of sites where materials adjustments needed to be made once technicians performed the proposed field 
work activities.  At some sites, such as the Windmill, the Windjammer eastside restrooms, and the 
parking lot floodlights, the City desired to upgrade or adjust the existing hardware to either provide better 
efficiency or to retrofit outdated fixtures.

As can be observed from the attached change order documentation, several of the sites consist of 
upgrades and the associated costs, as well as other sites representing adjustments to the equipment that 
actually reduced the original estimated costs.  The net fiscal impact of these equipment adjustments is 
$6,801.12.  With the associated labor, overheard, and other fees, the total amount of COP #3 is 
$11,490.46.  The attached documentation provides a detailed listing of these items.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
The fiscal impact of this change order is $11,490.46.  This cost will be allocated to those locations 
specified in the detailed listing of adjustments.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

.

95



ATTACHMENTS
1. COP #3 - Ameresco
ATTACHMENTS
1. COP #3 - Ameresco

96

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=3507ae08e21f08e45e749bfbadb2ed75&aName=1455305727_at.pdf


97



98



99



100



101



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility - Puget 
Sound Energy Schedule 74 
Agreement and temporary 
service Agreement to 
underground power lines.

FROM: Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
1) Authorize the Mayor to sign a Schedule 74 Construction Agreement with Puget Sound Energy in 
the not to exceed amount of $81,900 to underground power lines along City Beach St.

2) Authorize the Mayor to sign a temporary service agreement with Puget Sound Energy in the
amount $32,052.94.

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.j
Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility - Puget 
Sound Energy Schedule 74 
Agreement and temporary 
service Agreement to 
underground power lines.

FROM: Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
1) Authorize the Mayor to sign a Schedule 74 Construction Agreement with Puget Sound Energy in
the not to exceed amount of $81,900 to underground power lines along City Beach St.

2) Authorize the Mayor to sign a temporary service agreement with Puget Sound Energy in the
amount $32,052.94.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City of Oak Harbor is actively pursuing the replacement of two aging wastewater treatment plants 
with a new, state of the art, membrane bioreactor treatment plant.  The project involves undergrounding
the power lines along City Beach Street for construction safety and ultimately to improve the appearance 
of the plant frontage.

In order to underground these power lines, the city enters into contracts with Puget Sound Energy (PSE) 
to design and construct the improvements.  This conversion, regulated by state law, is called a Schedule 
74 conversion.  The first stage of the process involved PSE designing the improvements and providing a 
construction cost for city approval.  Council approved this design contract at the July 7, 2015 meeting.  
PSE has completed the design process and has prepared a cost estimate for the conversion.

PSE provided the attached Schedule 74 Agreement detailing the conversion process and cost.  PSE 
services involve installing wire and transformers along the front of the treatment plant.  Trenching and 
conduit installation are currently contracted under the Site Preparation B Guaranteed Maximum Price 
amendment (GMP #4).  The Schedule 74 conversion involves a 60/40 cost split between the city and 
PSE.  With a total cost of $204,780, the City of Oak Harbor’s cost share for this Schedule 74 
conversion is $81,900.  Implementing this conversion requires signing the Schedule 74 Agreement.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City of Oak Harbor is actively pursuing the replacement of two aging wastewater treatment plants 
with a new, state of the art, membrane bioreactor treatment plant.  The project involves undergrounding 
the power lines along City Beach Street for construction safety and ultimately to improve the appearance 
of the plant frontage.

In order to underground these power lines, the city enters into contracts with Puget Sound Energy (PSE) 
to design and construct the improvements.  This conversion, regulated by state law, is called a Schedule 
74 conversion.  The first stage of the process involved PSE designing the improvements and providing a 
construction cost for city approval.  Council approved this design contract at the July 7, 2015 meeting.  
PSE has completed the design process and has prepared a cost estimate for the conversion.

PSE provided the attached Schedule 74 Agreement detailing the conversion process and cost.  PSE 
services involve installing wire and transformers along the front of the treatment plant.  Trenching and 
conduit installation are currently contracted under the Site Preparation B Guaranteed Maximum Price 
amendment (GMP #4).  The Schedule 74 conversion involves a 60/40 cost split between the city and 
PSE.  With a total cost of $204,780, the City of Oak Harbor’s cost share for this Schedule 74 
conversion is $81,900.  Implementing this conversion requires signing the Schedule 74 Agreement.

102



The project also requires a temporary service off the new underground powerline to power the existing 
treatment plant and the construction site.  The PSE cost for this temporary service is $32,052.94 with a 
portion of the cost (approximately $6700) recovered at the end of the project.  Implementing this 
temporary service involves signing an agreement with PSE. 

In addition to the Schedule 74 conversion and temporary service, the city will be contracting with PSE for 
a permanent industrial power service at a later date.

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                     $113,964         

Appropriation Source:             Wastewater Fund         

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
July 7, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to issue a notice to proceed with Schedule 74 design 
with Puget Sound Electric (PSE) in the not to exceed amount of $6,900 to underground power lines 
along City Beach St.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - PSE Schedule 74 Construction Agreement, project plan, and cost estimate
2. Attachment B - PSE Temporary Service Agreement

The project also requires a temporary service off the new underground powerline to power the existing 
treatment plant and the construction site.  The PSE cost for this temporary service is $32,052.94 with a 
portion of the cost (approximately $6700) recovered at the end of the project.  Implementing this 
temporary service involves signing an agreement with PSE. 

In addition to the Schedule 74 conversion and temporary service, the city will be contracting with PSE for 
a permanent industrial power service at a later date.

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                     $113,964         

Appropriation Source:             Wastewater Fund         

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
July 7, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to issue a notice to proceed with Schedule 74 design 
with Puget Sound Electric (PSE) in the not to exceed amount of $6,900 to underground power lines 
along City Beach St.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - PSE Schedule 74 Construction Agreement, project plan, and cost estimate
2. Attachment B - PSE Temporary Service Agreement

103

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=3507ae08e21f08e45e749bfbadb2ed75&aName=1455132494_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=3507ae08e21f08e45e749bfbadb2ed75&aName=1455132581_at.pdf


Construction Agreement, Attachment “B” to Schedule 74, Page 1 
101094661 OAK HARBOR – City Beach St. S74 

SCHEDULE 74 UNDERGROUND CONVERSION 

Project Construction Agreement 

Project Name: OAK HARBOR – City Beach St. S74 
Project Number:  101094661 

THIS Agreement, dated as of this 1st day of February, 2016, is made by and between City of Oak 
Harbor, a municipal corporation (the “Government Entity”), and PUGET SOUND ENERGY, Inc., a
Washington Corporation (the “Company").

RECITALS 

A. The Company is a public service company engaged in the sale and distribution of electric 
energy, and pursuant to its franchise or other rights from the Government Entity, currently locates its 
electric distribution facilities within the jurisdictional boundaries of the Government Entity. 

B. The Government Entity has determined that it is necessary to replace the existing overhead 
electric distribution system within the area specified in the Project Plan (as defined below) (the 
"Conversion Area") with a comparable underground electric distribution system, all as more specifically 
described in the Project Plan (the "Conversion Project"). 

C. The Government Entity and the Company have previously entered into a Project Design 
Agreement dated as of July 15, 2015 (the "Design Agreement"), pursuant to which the parties completed 
certain engineering design, cost assessment, operating rights planning and other preliminary work relating 
to the Conversion Project and, in connection with that effort, developed the Project Plan. 

D. The Government Entity and the Company wish to execute this written contract in accordance 
with Schedule 74 of the Company's Electric Tariff G ("Schedule 74") to govern the completion of the 
Conversion Project, which both parties intend shall qualify as an underground conversion under the terms 
of Schedule 74. 

AGREEMENT 

The Government Entity and the Company therefore agree as follows: 

1. Definitions.

(a) Unless specifically defined otherwise herein, all terms defined in Schedule 74 shall have the same
meanings when used in this Agreement, including, without limitation, the following: 

i) Cost of Conversion;
ii) Public Thoroughfare;
iii) Temporary Service;
iv) Trenching and Restoration;
v) Underground Distribution System; and
vi) Underground Service Lines.

(b) “Company-Initiated Upgrade” shall mean any feature of the Underground Distribution System
which is required by the Company and is not reasonably required to make the Underground 
Distribution System comparable to the overhead distribution system being replaced.  For 
purposes of the foregoing, a "comparable" system shall include, unless the Parties otherwise 
agree, the number of empty ducts (not to exceed two (2), typically having a diameter of 6" or less) 

CWF - PSE Schedule 74 Agreement and temporary service agreement to underground power lines - Attachment A 104



Construction Agreement, Attachment “B” to Schedule 74, Page 2 
101094661 OAK HARBOR – City Beach St. S74 

of such diameter and number as may be specified and agreed upon in the Project Plan necessary 
to replicate the load-carrying capacity (system amperage class) of the overhead system being 
replaced. 

(c) “Estimated Reimbursable Private Conversion Costs” shall mean the Company's good faith 
estimate of the Reimbursable Private Conversion Costs, as specified in the Project Plan and as 
changed and adjusted from time to time in accordance with Section 6, below. 

(d) “Estimated Reimbursable Temporary Service Costs” shall mean the Company's good faith 
estimate of the Reimbursable Temporary Service Costs, as specified in the Project Plan and as 
changed and adjusted from time to time in accordance with Section 6, below. 

(e) “Estimated Reimbursable Upgrade Costs” shall mean the Company's good faith estimate of the 
Reimbursable Upgrade Costs, as specified in the Project Plan and as changed and adjusted from 
time to time in accordance with Section 6, below. 

(f) “Estimated Shared Company Costs” shall mean the Company's good faith estimate of the Shared 
Company Costs, as specified in the Project Plan and as changed and adjusted from time to time 
in accordance with Section 6, below. 

(g) “Estimated Shared Government Costs” shall mean the Government Entity's good faith estimate of 
the Shared Government Costs, as specified in the Project Plan and as changed and adjusted 
from time to time in accordance with Section 6, below. 

(h)  “Government-Requested Upgrade” shall mean any feature of the Underground Distribution 
System which is requested by the Government Entity and is not reasonably required to make the 
Underground Distribution System comparable to the overhead distribution system being replaced.  
For purposes of the foregoing, any empty ducts installed at the request of the Government Entity 
shall be a Government-Requested Upgrade. 

(i)  “Party” shall mean either the Company, the Government Entity, or both. 

(j)  “Private Property Conversion” shall mean that portion, if any, of the Conversion Project for which 
the existing overhead electric distribution system is located, as of the date determined in 
accordance with Schedule 74, (i) outside of the Public Thoroughfare, or (ii) pursuant to rights not 
derived from a franchise previously granted by the Government Entity or pursuant to rights not 
otherwise previously granted by the Government Entity. 

(k)  “Project Plan” shall mean the project plan developed by the Parties under the Design Agreement 
and attached hereto as Exhibit A, as the same may be changed and amended from time to time in 
accordance with Section 6, below.  The Project Plan includes, among other things, (i) a detailed 
description of the Work that is required to be performed by each Party and any third party, (ii) the 
applicable requirements and specifications for the Work, (iii) a description of the Operating Rights 
that are required to be obtained by each Party for the Conversion Project (and the requirements 
and specifications with respect thereto), (iv) an itemization and summary of the Estimated Shared 
Company Costs, Estimated Shared Government Costs, Estimated Reimbursable Private 
Conversion Costs (if any), Estimated Reimbursable Temporary Service Costs (if any) and 
Estimated Reimbursable Upgrade Costs (if any), and (v) the Work Schedule. 

(l)  “Operating Rights” shall mean sufficient space and legal rights for the construction, operation, 
repair, and maintenance of the Underground Distribution System. 

(m)  “Reimbursable Private Conversion Costs” shall mean (i) all Costs of Conversion, if any, incurred 
by the Company which are attributable to a Private Property Conversion, less (ii) the distribution 
pole replacement costs (if any) that would be avoided by the Company on account of such Private 
Property Conversion, as determined consistent with the applicable Company distribution facilities 

CWF - PSE Schedule 74 Agreement and temporary service agreement to underground power lines - Attachment A 105



Construction Agreement, Attachment “B” to Schedule 74, Page 3 
101094661 OAK HARBOR – City Beach St. S74 

replacement program, plus (iii) just compensation as provided by law for the Company's interests 
in real property on which such existing overhead distribution system was located prior to 
conversion; provided that the portion of the Reimbursable Private Conversion Costs attributable to 
the Costs of Conversion under subparagraph (i) of this paragraph shall not exceed the Estimated 
Reimbursable Private Conversion Costs without the prior written authorization of the Government 
Entity. 

(n)  “Reimbursable Temporary Service Costs” shall mean all costs incurred by the Company which 
are attributable to (i) any facilities installed as part of the Conversion Project to provide Temporary 
Service, as provided for in Schedule 74, and (ii) the removal of any facilities installed to provide 
Temporary Service (less salvage value of removed equipment); provided that the Reimbursable 
Temporary Service Costs shall not exceed the Estimated Reimbursable Temporary Service Costs 
without the prior written authorization of the Government Entity. 

(o)  “Reimbursable Upgrade Costs” shall mean all Costs of Conversion incurred by the Company 
which are attributable to any Government-Requested Upgrade; provided that the Reimbursable 
Upgrade Costs shall not exceed the Estimated Reimbursable Upgrade Costs without the prior 
written authorization of the Government Entity. 

(p)  “Shared Company Costs” shall mean all Costs of Conversion (other than Reimbursable Upgrade 
Costs, Reimbursable Private Conversion Costs and Reimbursable Temporary Service Costs) 
incurred by the Company in connection with the Conversion Project; provided, however, that the 
Shared Company Costs shall not exceed the Estimated Shared Company Costs without the prior 
written authorization of the Government Entity.  For the avoidance of doubt, the "Shared Company 
Costs" shall, as and to the extent specified in the Design Agreement, include the actual, 
reasonable costs to the Company for the "Design Work" performed by the Company under the 
Design Agreement. 

(q)  “Shared Government Costs” shall mean all Costs of Conversion incurred by the Government 
Entity in connection with (i) any duct and vault installation Work which the Parties have specified 
in the Project Plan is to be performed by the Government Entity as part of the Government Work, 
and (ii) the acquisition of any Operating Rights which the Parties have, by mutual agreement, 
specified in the Project Plan are to be obtained by the Government Entity for the Conversion 
Project, but only to the extent attributable to that portion of such Operating Rights which is 
necessary to accommodate the facilities of the Company; provided, however, that the Shared 
Government Costs shall not exceed the Estimated Shared Government Costs without the prior 
written authorization of the Company. 

(r)  “Total Shared Costs” shall mean the sum of the Shared Company Costs and the Shared 
Government Costs.  For the avoidance of doubt, the Total Shared Costs shall not include, without 
limitation, (i) costs to the Government Entity for Trenching and Restoration, or (ii) costs associated 
with any joint use of trenches by other utilities as permitted under Section 3(b). 

(s)  “Work” shall mean all work to be performed in connection with the Conversion Project, as more 
specifically described in the Project Plan, including, without limitation, the Company Work (as 
defined in Section 2(a), below) and the Government Work (as defined in Section 3(a), below). 

(t)  “Work Schedule” shall mean the schedule specified in the Project Plan which sets forth the 
milestones for completing the Work, as the same may be changed and amended from time to 
time in accordance with Section 6, below. 

2. Obligations of the Company. 
 

(a) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Company shall do the following as 
specified in, and in accordance with the design and construction specifications and other 
requirements set forth in, the Project Plan (the "Company Work"): 

CWF - PSE Schedule 74 Agreement and temporary service agreement to underground power lines - Attachment A 106



Construction Agreement, Attachment “B” to Schedule 74, Page 4 
101094661 OAK HARBOR – City Beach St. S74 

i) furnish and install an Underground Distribution System within the Conversion Area 
(excluding any duct and vault installation or other Work which the Parties have 
specified in the Project Plan is to be performed by the Government Entity); 

ii) provide a Company inspector on-site at the times specified in the Work Schedule to 
inspect the performance of any duct and vault installation Work which the Parties 
have specified in the Project Plan is to be performed by the Government Entity; and 

iii) upon connection of those persons or entities to be served by the Underground 
Distribution System and removal of facilities of any other utilities that are connected to 
the poles of the overhead system, remove the existing overhead system (including 
associated wires and Company-owned poles) of 15,000 volts or less within the 
Conversion Area except for Temporary Services. 

 
(b) Upon request of the Government Entity, the Company shall provide periodic reports of the 

progress of the Company Work identifying (i) the Company Work completed to date, (ii) the 
Company Work yet to be completed, and (iii) an estimate regarding whether the Conversion 
Project is on target with respect to the Estimated Shared Company Costs, the Estimated 
Reimbursable Private Conversion Costs (if any), the Estimated Reimbursable Temporary Service 
Costs (if any), the Estimated Reimbursable Upgrade Costs (if any) and the Work Schedule. 

(c) Except as otherwise provided in the Company's Electric Tariff G, the Company shall own, operate 
and maintain all electrical facilities installed pursuant to this Agreement including, but not limited 
to, the Underground Distribution System and Underground Service Lines. 

(d) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Company shall perform all Company 
Work in accordance with the Project Plan, the Work Schedule and this Agreement. 

3. Obligations of the Government Entity. 
 

(a) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Government Entity shall do the 
following as specified in, and in accordance with the design and construction specifications and 
other requirements set forth in, the Project Plan (the "Government Work"): 

 
i) provide the Trenching and Restoration; 
ii) perform the surveying for alignment and grades for ducts and vaults; and 
iii) perform any duct and vault installation and other Work which the Parties have 

specified in the Project Plan is to be performed by the Government Entity. 
 

(b) Other utilities may be permitted by the Government Entity to use the trenches provided by the 
Government Entity for the installation of their facilities so long as such facilities or the installation 
thereof do not interfere (as determined pursuant to the Company's electrical standards) with the 
Underground Distribution System or the installation or maintenance thereof.  Any such use of the 
trenches by other utilities shall be done subject to and in accordance with the joint trench design 
specifications and installation drawings set forth or otherwise identified in the Project Plan, and the 
Government Entity shall be responsible for the coordination of the design and installation of the 
facilities of the other utilities to ensure compliance with such specifications and drawings. 

(c) Upon request of the Company, the Government Entity shall provide periodic reports of the 
progress of the Government Work identifying (i) the Government Work completed to date, (ii) the 
Government Work yet to be completed, and (iii) an estimate regarding whether the Conversion 
Project is on target with respect to the Estimated Shared Government Costs and the Work 
Schedule. 

(d) The Government Entity shall be responsible for coordinating all work to be performed in 
connection with the street improvement program within the Conversion Area. 

CWF - PSE Schedule 74 Agreement and temporary service agreement to underground power lines - Attachment A 107



Construction Agreement, Attachment “B” to Schedule 74, Page 5 
101094661 OAK HARBOR – City Beach St. S74 

(e) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Government Entity shall perform all 
Government Work in accordance with the Project Plan, the Work Schedule and this Agreement. 

4. Work Schedule. 
 

(a) The Government Entity and the Company have agreed upon the Work Schedule as set forth in 
the Project Plan.  Changes to the Work Schedule shall be made only in accordance with 
Section 6, below. 

 
(b) Promptly following the execution of this Agreement, and upon completion by the Government 

Entity of any necessary preliminary work, the Government Entity shall hold a pre-construction 
meeting involving all participants in the Conversion Project to review project design, coordination 
requirements, work sequencing and related pre-mobilization requirements.  Following the pre-
construction meeting, the Government Entity shall give the Company written notice to proceed 
with the Work at least ten (10) business days prior to the commencement date specified in the 
Work Schedule. 

 
(c) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, each Party shall perform the Work 

assigned to it under this Agreement in accordance with the Work Schedule.  So long as the 
Company performs the Company Work in accordance with the Work Schedule, the Company 
shall not be liable to the Government Entity (or its agents, servants, employees, contractors, 
subcontractors, or representatives) for any claims, actions, damages, or liability asserted or 
arising out of delays in the Work Schedule. 

5. Location of Facilities. 

All facilities of the Company installed within the Conversion Area pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
located, and all related Operating Rights shall be obtained, in the manner set forth in the applicable 
provisions of Schedule 74, as specified by the Parties in the Project Plan. 

6. Changes. 
 

(a) Either Party may, at any time, by written notice thereof to the other Party, request changes in the 
Work within the general scope of this Agreement (a "Request for Change"), including, but not 
limited to: (i) changes in, substitutions for, additions to or deletions of any Work; (ii) changes in the 
specifications, drawings and other requirements in the Project Plan, (iii) changes in the Work 
Schedule, and (iv) changes in the location, alignment, dimensions or design of items included in 
the Work.  No Request for Change shall be effective and binding upon the Parties unless signed 
by an authorized representative of each Party. 

 
(b) If any change included in an approved Request for Change would cause a change in the cost of, 

or the time required for, the performance of any part of the Work, an equitable adjustment shall be 
made in the Estimated Shared Company Costs, the Estimated Shared Government Costs, the 
Estimated Reimbursable Private Conversion Costs (if any), the Estimated Reimbursable 
Temporary Service Costs (if any), the Estimated Reimbursable Upgrade Costs (if any) and/or the 
Work Schedule to reflect such change.  The Parties shall negotiate in good faith with the objective 
of agreeing in writing on a mutually acceptable equitable adjustment.  If the Parties are unable to 
agree upon the terms of the equitable adjustment, either Party may submit the matter for 
resolution pursuant to the dispute resolution provisions in Section 10, below. 

 
(c) The Work Schedule, the Estimated Shared Company Costs, the Estimated Shared Government 

Costs, the Estimated Reimbursable Private Conversion Costs, the Estimated Reimbursable 
Temporary Service Costs and/or the Estimated Reimbursable Upgrade Costs shall be further 
equitably adjusted from time to time to reflect any change in the costs or time required to perform 
the Work to the extent such change is caused by: (i) any Force Majeure Event under Section 11, 
below, (ii) the discovery of any condition within the Conversion Area which affects the scope, cost, 

CWF - PSE Schedule 74 Agreement and temporary service agreement to underground power lines - Attachment A 108



Construction Agreement, Attachment “B” to Schedule 74, Page 6 
101094661 OAK HARBOR – City Beach St. S74 

schedule or other aspect of the Work and was not known by or disclosed to the affected Party 
prior to the date of this Agreement, or (iii) any change or inaccuracy in any assumptions regarding 
the scope, cost, schedule or other aspect of the Work which are expressly identified by the Parties 
in the Project Plan.  Upon the request of either Party, the Parties will negotiate in good faith with 
the objective of agreeing in writing on a mutually acceptable equitable adjustment.  If, at any time 
thereafter, the Parties are unable to agree upon the terms of the equitable adjustment, either 
Party may submit the matter for resolution pursuant to the dispute resolution provisions in 
Section 10, below. 

 
(d) Notwithstanding any dispute or delay in reaching agreement or arriving at a mutually acceptable 

equitable adjustment, each Party shall, if requested by the other Party, proceed with the Work in 
accordance with any approved Request for Change.  Any request to proceed hereunder must be 
accompanied by a written statement setting forth the requesting Party's reasons for rejecting the 
proposed equitable adjustment of the other Party. 

7. Compensation and Payment. 
 

(a) Subject to and in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement (including, without 
limitation, the payment procedures set forth in this Section 7), payment in connection with the 
Conversion Project and this Agreement shall be as follows: 

 
i) The Total Shared Costs shall be allocated to the Parties in the following percentages: 

(A) sixty percent (60%) to the Company, and (B) forty percent (40%) to the 
Government Entity. 

ii) The Government Entity shall pay one hundred percent (100%) of all Reimbursable 
Private Conversion Costs, if any. 

iii) The Government Entity shall pay one hundred percent (100%) of all Reimbursable 
Upgrade Costs, if any. 

iv) The Government Entity shall pay one hundred percent (100%) of all Reimbursable 
Temporary Service Costs, if any. 

v) The Government Entity shall pay one hundred percent (100%) of the costs it incurs to 
perform that portion of the Government Work specified in Section 3(a)(i) and (ii) (i.e., 
Trenching and Restoration and surveying). 

vi) The Company shall pay one hundred percent (100%) of the costs it incurs to design, 
provide and construct any Company-Initiated Upgrade. 

vii) The Company shall pay one hundred percent (100%) of the costs it incurs to obtain 
Operating Rights outside the Public Thoroughfare. 

 
(b) Based on the allocation of responsibilities set forth in Section 7(a), above, the Parties shall 

determine the net amount payable by the Government Entity or the Company, as applicable, to 
the other Party under this Agreement (the "Net Amount").  The Net Amount shall be determined 
by using the amount of the Total Shared Costs allocated to the Government Entity under 
Section 7(a)(i), and adjusting such amount as follows: 

 
i) Subtracting (as a credit to the Government Entity) the amount of the Shared 

Government Costs. 
ii) Adding (as a credit to the Company) the amount of all Reimbursable Private 

Conversion Costs, Reimbursable Upgrade Costs and Reimbursable Temporary 
Service Costs. 

iii) Subtracting (as a credit to the Government Entity) any payments previously made to 
the Company by the Government Entity under the Design Agreement which, under 
the terms of the Design Agreement, are to be credited to the Government Entity 
under this Agreement. 

The Net Amount, as so calculated, (A) will be an amount payable to the Company if it is a positive 
number, and (B) shall be an amount payable to the Government Entity if it is a negative number. 

CWF - PSE Schedule 74 Agreement and temporary service agreement to underground power lines - Attachment A 109



Construction Agreement, Attachment “B” to Schedule 74, Page 7 
101094661 OAK HARBOR – City Beach St. S74 

 
(c) Within sixty (60) business days of completion of the Conversion Project, the Government Entity 

shall provide the Company with an itemization of the Shared Government Costs (the "Government 
Itemization"), together with such documentation and information as the Company may reasonably 
request to verify the Government Itemization.  The Government Itemization shall, at a minimum, 
break down the Shared Government Costs by the following categories, as applicable: (i) property 
and related costs incurred and/or paid by the Government Entity, including any costs of obtaining 
Operating Rights, and (ii) construction costs incurred and/or paid by the Government Entity, 
including and listing separately inspection, labor, materials and equipment, overhead and all costs 
charged by any agent, contractor or subcontractor of the Government Entity. 

 
(d) Within thirty (30) business days after the Company's receipt of the Government Itemization and 

requested documentation and information, the Company shall provide the Government Entity a 
written statement (the "Company Statement") showing (i) an itemization of the Shared Company 
Costs, (ii) the Parties' relative share of the Total Shared Costs based on the Company's 
itemization of the Shared Company Costs and the Government Entity's itemization of the Shared 
Government Costs set forth in the Government Itemization, (iii) any Reimbursable Private 
Conversion Costs, (iv) any Reimbursable Upgrade Costs, (v) any Reimbursable Temporary 
Service Costs, (vi) any credits to the Government Entity for payments previously made to the 
Company by the Government Entity under the Design Agreement which, under the terms of the 
Design Agreement, are to be credited to the Government Entity under this Agreement, and 
(vii) the Net Amount, as determined in accordance with Section 7(b), above, together with such 
documentation and information as the Government Entity may reasonably request to verify the 
Company Statement.  The itemization of the Shared Company Costs included in the Company 
Statement shall, at a minimum, break down the Shared Company Costs by the following 
categories, as applicable: (i) design and engineering costs, and (ii) construction costs, including 
and listing separately inspection, labor, materials and equipment, overhead and all costs charged 
by any agent, contractor or subcontractor of the Company. 

 
(e) Within thirty (30) business days after the Government Entity's receipt of the Company Statement 

and requested documentation and information, the Net Amount shall be paid by the owing Party to 
the other Party, as specified in the Company Statement. 

 
8. Indemnification. 

 
(a) The Government Entity releases and shall defend, indemnify and hold the Company harmless 

from all claims, losses, harm, liabilities, damages, costs and expenses (including, but not limited 
to, reasonable attorneys' fees) caused by or arising out of any negligent act or omission or willful 
misconduct of the Government Entity in its performance under this Agreement.  During the 
performance of such activities the Government Entity's employees or contractors shall at all times 
remain employees or contractors, respectively, of the Government Entity. 

 
(b) The Company releases and shall defend, indemnify and hold the Government Entity harmless 

from all claims, losses, harm, liabilities, damages, costs and expenses (including, but not limited 
to, reasonable attorneys' fees) caused by or arising out of any negligent act or omission or willful 
misconduct of the Company in its performance under this Agreement.  During the performance of 
such activities the Company's employees or contractors shall at all times remain employees or 
contractors, respectively, of the Company. 

 
(c) Solely for purposes of enforcing the indemnification obligations of a Party under this Section 8, 

each Party expressly waives its immunity under Title 51 of the Revised Code of Washington, the 
Industrial Insurance Act, and agrees that the obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless 
provided for in this Section 8 extends to any such claim brought against the indemnified Party by 
or on behalf of any employee of the indemnifying Party.  The foregoing waiver shall not in any way 
preclude the indemnifying Party from raising such immunity as a defense against any claim 
brought against the indemnifying Party by any of its employees. 

CWF - PSE Schedule 74 Agreement and temporary service agreement to underground power lines - Attachment A 110



Construction Agreement, Attachment “B” to Schedule 74, Page 8 
101094661 OAK HARBOR – City Beach St. S74 

 
9. Conversion of Service to Customers within Conversion Area. 

 
(a) Upon commencement of the Work, the Government Entity shall notify all persons and entities 

within the Conversion Area that service lines to such customers must be converted from overhead 
to underground service within the applicable statutory period following written notice from the 
Government Entity that service from underground facilities are available in accordance with RCW 
35.96.050.  Upon the request of any customer, other than a single family residential customer, 
within the Conversion Area, the Company shall remove the overhead system and connect such 
persons’ and entities’ Underground Service Lines to the Underground Distribution System. 

 
(b) The Parties acknowledge that single family residences within the Conversion Area must (i) 

provide a service trench and conduit, in accordance with the Company's specifications, from the 
underground meter base to the point of service provided during the conversion, and (ii) pay for the 
secondary service conductors as defined in Schedule 85 of the Company's Electric Tariff G.  The 
Government Entity shall exercise its authority to order disconnection and removal of overhead 
facilities with respect to owners failing to convert service lines from overhead to underground 
within the timelines provided in RCW 35.96.050. 

10. Dispute Resolution. 
 
(a) Any dispute, disagreement or claim arising out of or concerning this Agreement must first be 

presented to and considered by the Parties.  A Party who wishes dispute resolution shall notify the 
other Party in writing as to the nature of the dispute.  Each Party shall appoint a representative 
who shall be responsible for representing the Party's interests.  The representatives shall exercise 
good faith efforts to resolve the dispute.  Any dispute that is not resolved within ten (10) business 
days of the date the disagreement was first raised by written notice shall be referred by the 
Parties' representatives in writing to the senior management of the Parties for resolution.  In the 
event the senior management are unable to resolve the dispute within twenty (20) business days 
(or such other period as the Parties may agree upon), each Party may pursue resolution of the 
dispute through other legal means consistent with the terms of this Agreement.  All negotiations 
pursuant to these procedures for the resolution of disputes shall be confidential and shall be 
treated as compromise and settlement negotiations for purposes of the state and federal rules of 
evidence. 

 
(b) Any claim or dispute arising hereunder which relates to any Request for Change or any equitable 

adjustment under Section 6, above, or the compensation payable by or to either Party under 
Section 7, above, and which is not resolved by senior management within the time permitted 
under Section 10(a), above, shall be resolved by arbitration in Seattle, Washington, under the 
Construction Industry Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association then in effect.  The 
decision(s) of the arbitrator(s) shall be final, conclusive and binding upon the Parties.  All other 
disputes shall be resolved by litigation in any court or governmental agency, as applicable, having 
jurisdiction over the Parties and the dispute. 

 
(c) In connection with any arbitration under this Section 10, costs of the arbitrator(s), hearing rooms 

and other common costs shall be divided equally among the Parties.  Each Party shall bear the 
cost and expense of preparing and presenting its own case (including, but not limited to, its own 
attorneys' fees); provided, that, in any arbitration, the arbitrator(s) may require, as part of his or 
her decision, reimbursement of all or a portion of the prevailing Party's costs and expenses 
(including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys' fees) by the other Party. 

 
(d) Unless otherwise agreed by the Parties in writing, the Parties shall continue to perform their 

respective obligations under this Agreement during the pendency of any dispute. 
 

CWF - PSE Schedule 74 Agreement and temporary service agreement to underground power lines - Attachment A 111



Construction Agreement, Attachment “B” to Schedule 74, Page 9 
101094661 OAK HARBOR – City Beach St. S74 

11. Uncontrollable Forces. 

In the event that either Party is prevented or delayed in the performance of any of its obligations under 
this Agreement by reason beyond its reasonable control (a "Force Majeure Event"), then that Party’s 
performance shall be excused during the Force Majeure Event.  Force Majeure Events shall include, 
without limitation, war; civil disturbance; flood, earthquake or other Act of God; storm, earthquake or 
other condition which necessitates the mobilization of the personnel of a Party or its contractors to 
restore utility service to customers; laws, regulations, rules or orders of any governmental agency; 
sabotage; strikes or similar labor disputes involving personnel of a Party, its contractors or a third 
party; or any failure or delay in the performance by the other Party, or a third party who is not an 
employee, agent or contractor of the Party claiming a Force Majeure Event, in connection with the 
Work or this Agreement.  Upon removal or termination of the Force Majeure Event, the Party claiming 
a Force Majeure Event shall promptly perform the affected obligations in an orderly and expedited 
manner under this Agreement or procure a substitute for such obligation.  The Parties shall use all 
commercially reasonable efforts to eliminate or minimize any delay caused by a Force Majeure Event. 

12. Insurance. 
 
(a) PSE shall, and shall require each of its contractors to, secure and maintain in force throughout the 

duration of the Conversion Project (or, if sooner, until termination of this Agreement) 
comprehensive general liability insurances, with a minimum coverage of $1,000,000 per 
occurrence and $1,000,000 aggregate for personal injury; and $1,000,000 per occurrence/ 
aggregate for property damages, and professional liability insurance in the amount of $1,000,000. 

 
(b) The Government Entity shall ensure that each of its contractors performing any Government Work 

secures and maintains in force throughout the duration of the Conversion Project (or, if sooner, 
until termination of this Agreement) insurance policies having the same coverage, amounts and 
limits as specified Section 12(a), above. 

 
(c) In lieu of the insurance requirements set forth in Section 12(a), above, the Company may self-

insure against such risks in such amounts as are consistent with good utility practice.  Upon the 
Government Entity's request, the Company shall provide the Government Entity with reasonable 
written evidence that the Company is maintaining such self-insurance. 

13. Other. 
 
(a) Agreement Subject To Tariff.  This Agreement is subject to the General Rules and Provisions set 

forth in Tariff Schedule 80 of the Company's electrical Tariff G and to Schedule 74 of such Tariff 
as approved by the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission and in effect as of the 
date of this Agreement. 

 
(b) Termination.  The Government Entity reserves the right to terminate the Conversion Project and 

this Agreement upon written notice to the Company.  In the event that the Government Entity 
terminates the Conversion Project and this Agreement, the Government Entity shall reimburse the 
Company for all costs reasonably incurred by the Company in connection with the Work 
performed prior to the effective date of termination.  In such event, the costs reimbursable to the 
Company (i) shall not be reduced by any Shared Government Costs or other costs incurred by the 
Government Entity, and (ii) shall be paid within thirty (30) days after the receipt of the Company's 
invoice therefor.  Sections 1, 5, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11 and 13 shall survive any termination of the 
Conversion Project and/or this Agreement. 

 
(c) Facilities Greater Than 15,000 Volts.  Nothing in this Agreement shall in any way affect the rights 

or obligations of the Company under any previous agreements pertaining to the existing or future 
facilities of greater than 15,000 Volts within the Conversion Area. 

 

CWF - PSE Schedule 74 Agreement and temporary service agreement to underground power lines - Attachment A 112



Construction Agreement, Attachment “B” to Schedule 74, Page 10 
101094661 OAK HARBOR – City Beach St. S74 

(d) Compliance With Law.  The Parties shall, in performing the Work under this Agreement, comply 
with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, and regulations. 

 
(e) No Discrimination.  The Company, with regard to the Work performed by the Company under this 

Agreement, shall comply with all applicable laws relating to discrimination on the basis race, color, 
national origin, religion, creed, age, sex, or the presence of any physical or sensory handicap in 
the selection and retention of employees or procurement of materials or supplies. 

 
(f) Independent Contractor.  The Company and the Government Entity agree that the Company is an 

independent contractor with respect to the Work and this Agreement.  The Company is acting to 
preserve and protect its facilities and is not acting for the Government Entity in performing the 
Work.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be considered to create the relationship of employer and 
employee between the Parties.  Neither the Company nor any employee of the Company shall be 
entitled to any benefits accorded employees of the Government Entity by virtue of the Work or this 
Agreement.  The Government Entity shall not be responsible for withholding or otherwise 
deducting federal income tax or social security or contributing to the State Industrial Insurance 
Program, or otherwise assuming the duties of an employer with respect to the Company, or any 
employee of the Company. 

 
(g) Nonwaiver of Rights or Remedies.  No failure or delay of either Party to insist upon or enforce 

strict performance by the other Party of any provision of this Agreement or to exercise any other 
right under this Agreement, and no course of dealing or performance with respect thereto, shall, 
except to the extent provided in this Agreement, be construed as a waiver or, or choice of, or 
relinquishment of any right under any provision of this Agreement or any right at law or equity not 
otherwise provided for herein.  The express waiver by either Party of any right or remedy under 
this Agreement or at law or equity in a particular instance or circumstance shall not constitute a 
waiver thereof in any other instance or circumstance. 

 
(h) No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no third-party beneficiaries of this Agreement.  Nothing 

contained in this Agreement is intended to confer any right or interest on anyone other than the 
Parties, their respective successors, assigns and legal representatives. 

 
(i) Governmental Authority.  This Agreement is subject to the rules, regulations, orders and other 

requirements, now or hereafter in effect, of all governmental regulatory authorities and courts 
having jurisdiction over this Agreement, the Parties or either of them.  All laws, ordinances, rules, 
regulations, orders and other requirements, now or hereafter in effect, of governmental regulatory 
authorities and courts that are required to be incorporated into agreements of this character are by 
this reference incorporated in this Agreement. 

 
(j) No Partnership.  This Agreement shall not be interpreted or construed to create an association, 

joint venture or partnership between the Parties or to impose any partnership obligations or liability 
upon either Party.  Further, neither Party shall have any right, power or authority to enter into any 
agreement or undertaking for or on behalf of, to act as or be an agent or representative of, or to 
otherwise bind the other Party. 

 
(k) Severability.  In the event that any provision of this Agreement or the application of any such 

provision shall be held invalid as to either Party or any circumstance by any court having 
jurisdiction, such provision shall remain in force and effect to the maximum extent provided by 
law, and all other provisions of this Agreement and their application shall not be affected thereby 
but shall remain in force and effect unless a court or arbitrator holds they are not severable from 
the invalid provisions. 

 

CWF - PSE Schedule 74 Agreement and temporary service agreement to underground power lines - Attachment A 113



Construction Agreement, Attachment “B” to Schedule 74, Page 11 
101094661 OAK HARBOR – City Beach St. S74 

(l) Notice.  Any notice under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be faxed (with a copy 
followed by mail or hand delivery), delivered in person, or mailed, properly addressed and 
stamped with the required postage, to the intended recipient as follows: 

If to the Government Entity: City of Oak Harbor 
Attn: Brett Arvidson 
Project Engineer 
Barvidson@oakharbor.org 
360-179-4521 

If to the Company: Puget Sound Energy, Inc. 
Attn: Josh Grenner 
Project Manager 
Joshua.grenner@pse.com 
425-457-4542 

Any Party may change its address specified in this Section 13(l) by giving the other Party notice of 
such change in accordance with this Section 13(l). 

 
(m) Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall in all respects be interpreted, construed and enforced in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Washington (without reference to rules governing conflict 
of laws), except to the extent such laws may be preempted by the laws of the United States of 
America. 

 
(n) Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties with respect to 

the subject matter hereof and all other agreements and understandings of the Parties, whether 
written or oral, with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement are hereby superseded in their 
entireties; provided, however, that except as expressly set forth in this Agreement, nothing herein 
is intended to or shall alter, amend or supersede the Design Agreement and the same shall 
remain in full force and effect in accordance with its terms. 

 
(o) Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the 

respective successors, assigns, purchasers, and transferees of the Parties, including but not 
limited to, any entity to which the rights or obligations of a Party are assigned, delegated, or 
transferred in any corporate reorganization, change of organization, or purchase or transfer of 
assets by or to another corporation, partnership, association, or other business organization or 
division thereof. 

Government Entity: Company: 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR  PUGET SOUND ENERGY, INC. 

 

BY  BY  

ITS  ITS  

Date Signed  Date Signed  
 

Approved as to form: 

  

CWF - PSE Schedule 74 Agreement and temporary service agreement to underground power lines - Attachment A 114

mailto:Barvidson@oakharbor.org
mailto:Joshua.grenner@pse.com


 

City of Oak Harbor 
City Beac St S74. Underground Conversion Page 1  
101094661 

 
 

Exhibit “A” Project Plan 

Schedule 74 Underground Conversion 

 

City of Oak Harbor – City Beach St. S74 
(Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility) 

PSE Project Number:  101094661 
1/19/16 

 
Pursuant to Puget Sound Energy (“PSE”) Rate Schedule 74 and as described in this Project Plan, 
PSE will convert its existing overhead electrical distribution system of 15,000 volts or less to an 
equivalent Underground Distribution System.  This Project Plan describes the scope of 
construction work (the “Construction Work”) to be performed by PSE and the City of Oak 
Harbor (the “City”) for the conversion of certain PSE electrical distribution system facilities as 
described herein (the “Conversion Project”).  Construction of this Conversion Project is 
contingent upon and shall commence only after both written acceptance of this Project Plan and 
written execution of a Schedule 74 Construction Agreement by the City and PSE. 
 
This Project Plan includes and consists of: 
 Description of the Construction Work to be performed 
 Construction Drawings, Standards, Specifications and Requirements for the Construction 

Work (attached) 
 Operating Rights to be obtained for the Conversion Project (attached)  
 Construction Work Schedule 
 Construction Costs Estimate Summary (attached) 
 
Revisions to this Project Plan must be mutually approved by the City and PSE. 

 

Construction Work 

This Conversion Project will replace PSE’s existing overhead electrical distribution system with 
an Underground Distribution System within the following area (the “Conversion Area”):  City 
Beach Street starting at a point approximately 140' south of Pioneer Way for a 
distance of 700' south to existing P# 447428-155738. There will also be a primary crossing 
of City Beach Street at Bayshore Drive (approximately 200 additional ckt ft). This project will 
consist of 2-4” conduits the length of the project. One 200A 3-Phase 1/0 circuit will be installed 
in one run of the 4” conduits and the other will serve as a spare. In conjunction with this project 
and the JUT, there will be additional conduits installed to support two additional 3-phase line 
extensions. One will be for a 2 year temporary service for crane, construction operations and de-
watering (WO# 105079662). The other will be for the permanent 3-phase line extension to serve 
the future Clean Water Facility (CWF) 

CWF - PSE Schedule 74 Agreement and temporary service agreement to underground power lines - Attachment A 115



 

City of Oak Harbor 
City Beac St S74. Underground Conversion Page 2  
101094661 

being constructed (WO# 105079331)..  The Conversion Project is approximately 900’ feet in 
length, including laterals and road crossings. 

The Conversion Project includes modification or replacement of all existing services lines within 
the Conversion Area to connect to the Underground Distribution System and removal of PSE’s 
existing overhead electric distribution facilities (including PSE distribution poles and pole 
mounted street lights) from the Conversion Area. 

PSE initiated upgrades included in this project consist of:  None Noted 

City requested upgrades included in this project consist of:  Work to be done in conjunction with 
the City of Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility WO#105079331. 

City requested upgrades included in this project consist of:  Research and compliance with Buy 
America Act provisions administered by the Federal Highways Administration (FHWA) and/or 
the Federal Transit Administration (FTA).  None Noted. 

Temporary Service included in this project consists of:  Temporary service was requested by the 
City for a tower crane, construction operations, and de-watering. To be addressed with WO# 
105079662. 

The following portions of PSE’s existing facilities to be converted are located outside of Public 
Thoroughfare: None Noted. 

In conjunction with this Conversion Project, PSE will remove its existing street lighting system 
from the Conversion Area.  Provision of a replacement street lighting system within the 
Conversion Area is not included in this Project Plan.  Replacement street lighting service can be 
provided by separate arrangement in accordance with applicable PSE Tariff Schedules. 

 
Responsibilities of Parties 

City Responsibilities 

a) At least ten (10) business days prior to the scheduled commencement of Construction Work, 
hold a pre-construction meeting involving all participants in the Conversion Project to review 
project design, coordination requirements, work sequencing and related premobilization 
requirements. 

b) At least ten (10) business days prior to the scheduled commencement of Construction Work, 
give PSE written notice to proceed with the Construction Work to allow for delivery of PSE 
materials to the job site and scheduling of PSE’s on-site Inspector. 

c) Provide written notice to customers within the Conversion Area in advance of Conversion 
Project Construction Work start.  The notice will include contact information for both the 
City and PSE, the expected Conversion Project schedule, anticipation of service interruptions 
and work required to be performed by customers. 

d) Coordinate other utility conversion, removal and relocation from PSE’s poles. 

e) Provide all surveying for equipment placement, locations, and establish all grade elevations 
for the Underground Distribution System within the Conversion Area.  

CWF - PSE Schedule 74 Agreement and temporary service agreement to underground power lines - Attachment A 116



 

City of Oak Harbor 
City Beac St S74. Underground Conversion Page 3  
101094661 

f) Provide all necessary excavation, bedding, backfill, off-site disposal, site restoration and 
coordination for installation of the Underground Distribution System.  This includes 
trenching, backfill, and restoration for cut-over and transfer of existing underground system 
and service lines from the existing overhead distribution system to the new Underground 
Distribution System. 

g) Coordinate private property trenching, excavation and restoration activity with private 
property owners affected by this Conversion Project. 

h) Provide flagging and traffic control as required for all work performed by the City. 

i) Install and proof all ducts and vaults for the Underground Distribution System (excluding 
work in ducts or vaults containing energized cables or equipment – see PSE Responsibilities) 
in accordance with PSE standards and specifications using ducts and vaults provided by PSE.  
“Proofing” as used herein is defined as verification using a mandrel that the duct and vault 
system is free and clear of damage, installed to the proper grade and at the proper location 
and contains a pulling line.   

j) Provide at least five (5) business days’ notice for scheduled delivery of PSE vaults by PSE’s 
vault supplier. 

k) Provide secure staging and storage area(s) for duct and vault materials provided by PSE.  The 
City shall be responsible for the security and condition of these materials until they are 
installed and accepted by PSE or returned to PSE’s custody. 

l) Provide labor and equipment for the off-loading of PSE duct and vault materials delivered to 
the job site. 

m) Promptly following notice from PSE that the Underground Distribution System has been 
energized, provide notice to customers within the Conversion Area informing them of their 
obligation and responsibility to convert their overhead service lines to underground service 
lines as provided by state law or to modify existing underground service lines for connection 
to the Underground Distribution System.  Affected service lines are listed in the Service 
Lines section of this Project Plan. 

n) Facilitate weekly (or as otherwise agreed by the City and PSE) construction coordination 
meetings to include all relevant parties participating in the conversion including PSE and it’s 
contractor(s), the City and it’s contractor(s), and other utilities. 

o) Provide any necessary operating rights for the installation of PSE’s facilities in accordance 
with PSE’s Schedule 74 Section 3 and as mutually agreed by the PSE and the City.  
Operating rights are further addressed in the Operating Rights section of this Project Plan. 

p) Modify, reroute or replace service lines to City owned facilities to connect to the 
Underground Distribution System. 

q) Following notification from PSE that Construction Work is complete, provide to PSE any 
Shared Government Costs as provided for in the Construction Agreement. 

Puget Sound Energy Responsibilities 

a) Provide all duct and vault materials, cables, electrical equipment and components necessary 
for installation of the Underground Distribution System. 

CWF - PSE Schedule 74 Agreement and temporary service agreement to underground power lines - Attachment A 117



 

City of Oak Harbor 
City Beac St S74. Underground Conversion Page 4  
101094661 

b) Following notice from the City, deliver or cause to be delivered all duct and vault materials 
to the designated staging/storage area(s).  Acknowledge delivered quantities and condition of 
duct and vault materials by signing shipping manifests. 

c) Following notice from the City, provide inspection services needed for overseeing the proper 
installation of ducts and vaults by the City. 

d) Accept delivery of the completed duct and vault system once the new system has been 
proofed (as described above) by the City.  PSE will provide a mandrel to the City to be used 
in proofing of the duct and vault system. 

e) Provide PSE electrical workers to complete duct installation and proofing when such work is 
performed at or in any energized vault containing energized cables or equipment. 

f) Install (except for ducts and vaults installed by the City) and energize the Underground 
Distribution System.  Provide written notice to the City when the Underground Distribution 
System is energized. 

g) Perform cut-over and transfer of existing Underground Distribution System and existing 
underground service lines from the overhead distribution system to the new Underground 
Distribution System where applicable (see City Responsibility item “f” concerning trenching 
responsibility).  PSE will notify the City for excavation and the affected customers at least 
two (2) business days prior to installation, transfer, and connection of underground service 
lines.  Affected service lines are listed in the Service Lines section of this Project Plan. 

h) Install and connect replacement underground service lines to single family residences and 
connect modified and replacement non-residential underground service lines provided by 
customers within the Conversion Area pursuant to PSE Tariff Schedule 85.  Affected service 
lines are listed in the Service Lines section of this Project Plan. 

i) Remove the existing overhead electric distribution system including, conductors, equipment, 
down guys, anchors and poles after all service lines to customers within the Conversion Area 
are connected to the Underground Distribution System and all other utilities have been 
removed from PSE’s poles.  Holes left following removal of poles will be filled with crushed 
rock and compacted in accordance with applicable City standards or specifications. 

j) Provide flagging and traffic control as required for all work performed by PSE (except as 
may otherwise be reasonably provided by the City during installation of ducts and vaults in 
conjunction with City performed trenching, excavation, back-fill and restoration). 

k) Attend weekly (or as otherwise agreed by the City and PSE) construction coordination 
meetings facilitated by the City and its contractor during periods of Conversion Project 
construction. 

 
Operating Rights 

The Underground Distribution System will be located within Public Thoroughfare except as 
described in the Operating Rights Attachment.  The Construction Work will not be released by 
PSE for construction until i) all operating rights necessary for the installation of PSE’s facilities 
have been obtained and have been verified by PSE, or ii) the City otherwise signs an agreement 
releasing PSE from any and all financial obligations associated with the location or relocation of 

CWF - PSE Schedule 74 Agreement and temporary service agreement to underground power lines - Attachment A 118



 

City of Oak Harbor 
City Beac St S74. Underground Conversion Page 5  
101094661 

PSE facilities resulting from commencement of construction prior to acquisition of all identified 
necessary operating rights. 

 
Construction Work Schedule 

The Construction Work will be performed in accordance with the following Work Schedule, 
unless this schedule is revised by mutual agreement of the City and PSE or circumstances 
beyond the reasonable control of the City and/or PSE preclude such performance. 

Installation of ducts and vaults:  Approximately 18 Days 

Installation and energization of the Underground Distribution System:  Approximately 9 
Days 

Removal of overhead facilities:  Approximately 3 Days 

Installation and removal of Temporary Service:  N/A 

Work Schedule Restrictions:  As permitted by the City. 

 
Construction Cost Estimate 

The estimated costs to perform the Construction Work and the allocation of costs between the 
parties are presented in the attached Construction Costs Estimate Summary.  These estimated 
costs are valid for ninety (90) days from the date shown on the attached Construction Costs 
Estimate Summary.  If this Project Plan and a Schedule 74 Construction Agreement are not fully 
executed within ninety (90) days from this date, the estimated costs shall be subject to revision. 

The scope of work provided for in the previously executed Design Agreement has been 
completed with written acceptance of this Project Plan by the City and PSE.  The Construction 
Cost Estimate reflects and provides for Construction Work costs commencing with PSE 
attendance at the required pre-construction meeting and receipt of the City’s written notice to 
proceed with Construction Work.  Work performed and/or costs incurred by PSE in response to 
City request following acceptance of the Project Plan and prior to the pre-construction meeting 
are not included in the Construction Cost Estimate, and shall be subject to addition to the 
Construction Cost Estimate by revision as described below. 

Estimated Inspection and Service Provider Outside Services costs are based on 2015 contract 
rates.  Costs for Construction Work performed by PSE after February 2, 2016 shall be subject to 
revision to reflect PSE Service Provider contract rates which become effective after this date. 

Changes in Construction Work scope, performance and/or schedule can result in actual 
Construction Costs that differ from estimated costs shown in the Construction Cost Estimate 
Summary.  In the event performance of the Construction Work cannot or does not proceed 
substantially as provided in this Project Plan, such changes shall promptly be brought to the 
attention of PSE and the City when anticipated or known and shall be documented in a revision 
to the Construction Cost Estimate (a “Cost Estimate Revision”) mutually agreed and executed by 
the City and PSE. 
 

 

CWF - PSE Schedule 74 Agreement and temporary service agreement to underground power lines - Attachment A 119



 

City of Oak Harbor 
City Beac St S74. Underground Conversion Page 6  
101094661 

Project Assumptions 

The project design, construction plans and cost estimates are based on and reflect the following 
assumptions.  Construction conditions that are not consistent with these assumptions may result 
in a request for change or an equitable adjustment to project compensation under Section 6 of the 
Construction Agreement and addressed by a Cost Estimate Revision. 
 
Cost Assumptions 
 
1. The Construction Work will be performed in accordance with the Construction Drawings and 

Construction Work Schedule. 

2. PSE’s Project Manager will accept or reject (with written justification) the duct and vault 
installation work performed by the City within five (5) business days notice of completion 
from the City.  In the event PSE rejects any of the ducts or vaults (with reasonable written 
justification), the City will perform the necessary remedial work.  The City will then re-
notify PSE and PSE shall have five (5) business days to accept or reject the remedial work. 

3. All PSE cables can be pulled through the ducts and vaults system, including existing ducts 
and vaults if applicable, to be used for the Conversion Project utilizing normal cable pulling 
equipment and methods. 

4. A City Street Use permit is the only permit necessary for PSE to perform its work for this 
Conversion Project and will be issued within two (2) weeks of PSE submitting a complete 
permit application (including any supporting documentation reasonably required by the 
City).  There will be no charge for the permit or inspection fees. 

5. The estimated daily productivity rate for PSE duct and vault installation is based on the City’s 
contractor opening a minimum of 50’ feet of trench per working day.  The daily productivity 
rate is used to estimate the number of days a PSE Inspector will be required during installation 
of ducts & vaults.  The Inspector will be scheduled in full day increments and in one 
continuous effort.  Changes to a continuous schedule require a minimum of five days advance 
notice and must be mutually agreed between the City and PSE. 

6. Attendance by the PSE Project Manager at scheduled weekly construction coordination 
meetings is included and reflected in the Construction Cost Estimate during periods when the 
PSE ducts and vaults are actively being installed and when the PSE line crew is performing 
installation, energization, cut-over and removal work.  Attendance at additional meetings that 
may be requested/required during other periods will be addressed by a Cost Estimate 
Revision. 

7. Traffic control provided by PSE assumes the use of two flaggers, basic signage and simple 
channelization.  Additional traffic control measures are not included and if 
requested/required will be addressed by a Cost Estimate Revision. 

8. Work to be performed by PSE does not include installation and/or removal of Temporary 
Service facilities at the request of others during construction. 

9. Cut-over and transfer work will be completed during regular working hours except as 
described in Schedule Assumption #3 below.  Changes in the performance of this work will 
be addressed by a Cost Estimate Revision. 

10. New guy anchors shall be installed prior to installation of new ducts in the same area. 

CWF - PSE Schedule 74 Agreement and temporary service agreement to underground power lines - Attachment A 120



 

City of Oak Harbor 
City Beac St S74. Underground Conversion Page 7  
101094661 

11. When Fluidized Thermal Backfill (FTB) is used, associated cost will be allocated 100% to 
PSE when required for a Company Initiated Upgrade and otherwise 100% to the City. 

12. Installation of protective bollards may be necessary at some locations and may not be 
included in the project design.  In the event unplanned bollards are required, associated costs 
will be a Shared Cost and addressed by a Cost Estimate Revision. 

Schedule 

1. There will be a total of two (2) PSE crew mobilizations as follows: i) one mobilization of an 
underground line crew for installation of underground conductors and equipment; and ii) one 
mobilization of an overhead line crew for removal of the existing overhead facilities.  Once 
mobilized PSE crews will have continuous productive work until all PSE Construction Work 
is complete. 

2. All PSE Construction Work will be performed during regular working hours from 7:00am – 
5:00pm excluding holidays.  In the event that lane closures are necessary for performance of 
work, PSE shall be limited to working between the hours of 7:00am – 5:00pm.  PSE and the 
City will mutually agree to weekly work schedules for the Construction Work.  PSE shall be 
allowed to perform PSE work as scheduled without changes or interruptions caused by other 
construction activities. 

3. PSE customers within the Conversion Area will experience interruption of electric service 
during performance of the Construction Work when cutting over and transferring system and 
customer loads from the overhead distribution system to the Underground Distribution 
System.  Cut-over and transfer work will be performed during the regular working hours 
specified in Schedule Assumption #2 above except as otherwise provided below.  PSE will 
notify customers at least two (2) business days in advance of scheduled service interruptions. 
 
Cut-over & Transfer Work Outside of Regular Working Hours 
[insert list or delete] 

 
Additional Considerations 

 
Service Lines 

Service lines within the Conversion Area must be modified or replaced to provide underground 
service from the Underground Distribution System as described in as listed in the Construction 
Drawings.  Performance of the work and associated costs shall be governed by PSE Tariff 
Schedule 85. 

 
New Service 

Connection of new or increased load for City facilities (such as new traffic signals) under terms 
of PSE Tariff Schedule 85 will be addressed on a separate work order and work sketch.  
Additional costs may apply and will be quoted separately. 

 

CWF - PSE Schedule 74 Agreement and temporary service agreement to underground power lines - Attachment A 121



 

City of Oak Harbor 
City Beac St S74. Underground Conversion Page 8  
101094661 

PSE Design & Construction Standards 

This Conversion Project has been designed and will be constructed in accordance with PSE 
design and construction standards in effect as of the date of this Project Plan.  PSE standards 
applicable to Construction Work to be performed by the City have been provided to the City in 
PSE’s “Electric Distribution Trench/Duct/Vault Construction Standards, 2013”.  All relevant 
PSE standard described above are attached to this Project Plan by this reference. 

 
Temporary Support (Holding) of PSE Poles 

Whenever any pole(s) are required to be temporarily supported (held) due to excavation in 
proximity to such poles, the City will coordinate with PSE to provide such support.  The need to 
temporarily support such poles shall be determined by PSE, and if required, such support shall be 
provided by PSE.  As used herein, “temporary support” means supporting one or more poles for 
a continuous working period of ten hours or less. 

Acceptance of Project Plan 

 
The City and PSE mutually agree to and accept this Project Plan as of the date indicated below: 
 
For the City: For PSE: 
 
By: ______________________________ By: _____________________________ 
 
Its: ______________________________ Its: _____________________________ 
 
Date: ____________________________ Date: ___________________________ 
 
 

CWF - PSE Schedule 74 Agreement and temporary service agreement to underground power lines - Attachment A 122



Date: 1/28/2016

Project Title: OAK HARBOR - City Beach St. S74

Project Description: OH to UG Conversion along City Beach St.

Rate Schedule: 74

Project Manager / Phone #: Josh Grenner 425-457-4542

Project Engineer / Phone #: Mike Schroyer 360-941-2007

Municipal Liaison Mgr / Phone #: Raelynn Asah 360-766-5509

Project #: 101094661

Revision #: 1

Revision Date: 2/1/2016

100% Government Entity Reimbursable Costs

Shared Costs
3

Private 

Conversion

Gov Req 

Upgrade

Temporary 

Services

Prior 

Conv/Reloc 

Within 5 Years

Total 100% GE 

Reimbursable 

Costs

100% PSE 

Costs

Construction 

Costs Totals
4,5

Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

Company

Labor 10,000$           -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                        -$                     10,000$           
Materials 50,300$           -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                        -$                     50,300$           
Equipment -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                        -$                     -$                     
Inspection -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                        -$                     -$                     
Service Provider Outside Services 121,980$         -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                        -$                     121,980$         
Operating Rights -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                        -$                     -$                     
Overhead 22,500$           -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                        -$                     22,500$           
Government Entity 

5

Labor -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                        -$                     -$                     
Operating Rights -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                        -$                     -$                     

Construction Costs Totals
4,5

204,780$         -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                        -$                     204,780$         

Projected allocation of Estimated Construction Costs at Completion of Construction Work

Company 122,900$         -$                     122,900$         
Government Entity 81,900$           -$                        81,900$           

Notes:
1  Estimate prepared in accordance with Sections 6 & 11 of Schedule 74 Design Agreement and Section 7 of Schedule 74 Construction Agreement  
2  All amounts shown in this estimate are rounded up to the next $100
3  Shared Costs are allocated 40% to the Government Entity and 60% to the Company if the Conversion Project is completed
4  Total Costs excludes Government Entity costs of trenching, restoration, and surveying
5  This estimate presentation may not include eligible estimated Government Entity costs and may be incomplete

Construction Costs Estimate Summary 
1,2,5

Construction Estimate Printed 2/1/2016 3:03 PM
CWF - PSE Schedule 74 Agreement and temporary service agreement to underground power lines - Attachment A 123



CWF - PSE Schedule 74 Agreement and temporary service agreement to underground power lines - Attachment B 124



CWF - PSE Schedule 74 Agreement and temporary service agreement to underground power lines - Attachment B 125



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility Project 
Update by City Staff

FROM: Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Review Update on the Clean Water Facility.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Requested by City Council.

FISCAL IMPACT

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 5.a.i
Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility Project 
Update by City Staff

FROM: Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Review Update on the Clean Water Facility.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Requested by City Council.

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Report for 2/16/2016

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Report for 2/16/2016

.

..

126

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=3507ae08e21f08e45e749bfbadb2ed75&aName=1455294364_at.pdf


Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update February 16, 2016 
1 

CITY COUNCIL PROJECT UPDATE – February 16, 2016
The following is a snapshot of project activities and milestones, as well as anticipated upcoming activities 
and risks being monitored for the Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility Project. These updates are provided to 
City Council on a bi-weekly basis.  

RECENT ACTIVITIES AND MILESTONES (PREVIOUS TWO WEEKS) 
• Site Preparation Package B (Deep Excavation)

• Digester, digester building, CMU wall and footings demolished
• Pre-drilling for sheet piles began

• Windjammer Park Integration Plan - Citizen Advisory Group second meeting and public open
house conducted February 4, 2016.

• Concrete package design completed

ANTICIPATED/UPCOMING ACTIVITIES AND MILESTONES (NEXT SIX WEEKS) 
• Site Preparation Package B

• Demolition to continue
• Pre-drilling for sheet piles to continue

• Proceed with development of the Windjammer Park Integration Plan
• Preparing for CAG meeting #3

CLEAN WATER FACILITY DESIGN STATUS 
Item Description Progress % 
Facility Design – 
Process Structures 

Carollo Engineers is completing the 90% design drawings 
for the process structures associated with the treatment 
plant. 

90% 

Facility Design – 
Biosolids Building 

Design of the Biosolids building is at approximately 30%. 30% 

Facility Design – 
Admin/Maintenance 

Design of the Admin, Maintenance and Community room 
are at approximately 30%. 

30% 

CONSTRUCTION PACKAGE STATUS 
Item Description Progress % 
Site Preparation 
Package B  

The design for the deep excavation package is complete. 
Construction has begun. 

Completed 

Site Preparation 
Package C  

Preliminary work has begun on Site Preparation Package C. 
Work will include micro-piles in the bottom of the deep 
excavation and installation of a tower crane 

Completed 

Concrete Package Design of the concrete structures for the Membrane 
Bioreactors and Aeration Basins has been completed.  
Hoffman is currently preparing a cost estimate for the 
proposed work.  KBA is providing cost validation. 

90% 

127



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  February 16, 2016 
2 

 

PERMIT ACQUISITIONS STATUS 
Pending Permits Description 

• Boundary Line Adjustment 
• Foundation permit 

 
• Site Plan Amendment 

• The Boundary Line Adjustment complete. 
• Site Prep C – Micropiles – The design team has applied for a 

foundation permit. 
• The design team is revising the site plan submittal to reflect Concept 

B and the community room. 
 

CONSTRUCTION STATUS 
Item Description Estimated Completion 
GMP #2 (Outfall Construction) The subcontractor has completed their work.  We 

are currently finalizing the paperwork for this 
phase of work. 

Final Closeout 

GMP #3 (Site Preparation A) The subcontractor has completed their work and 
the contract is being closed out. 

Completed 

GMP #4 (Site Preparation B) Construction activities have begun May 2016 
GMP #6 (Site Preparation C) Construction activities have begun July 2016 

 
 
COST AND FUNDING STATUS 

Major Cost Item Cost Estimate Description 

GMP #1 (MBR/UV) $2,775,455.58 
(includes sales tax) 

Awarded by City Council on 12/2/2014 
Includes Membrane Bioreactor and Ultra Violet Disinfection 
equipment procurement and design support.  Does not include 
installation costs. 

GMP #2 (Outfall) $2,164,488 
(includes sales tax) 

Awarded by City Council on 4/21/15 
Construction of a new outfall from approximately the 
waterfront trail out into Oak Harbor Bay. 

GMP #3 (Site Prep A) $908,872 
(includes sales tax) 

Approved by City Council 6/16/15.  
Preliminary site excavation and archaeological investigation.  
Preliminary results indicate this work will come in under budget 
or be delayed until Site Preparation Package B.  

GMP #4 (Site Prep B) $5,109,549 
(includes sales tax) 

Site Preparation Package B will include utility relocates, minor 
demolition at the existing RBC Plant, stone column installation, 
sheet pile installation and deep excavation.  City Council 
approved GMP #4 on October 20. . 

Overall Project TBD 60% design documents have been received by the City. Carollo 
and Hoffman completed cost estimates. Staff presented the 
updated cost estimate to City Council at a workshop on 
September 30th with options regarding biosolids handling and 
including a community/training room.  90% Design is expected 
to begin in October. 

GMP #5  
(Biosolids Dryer) 
 

$2,028,222 Bio-solids handling options were presented to City Council at a 
Special Workshop held on September 30th.  A Resolution and 
GMP #5 regarding a biosolids dryer were approved at the 
October 20th City Council Meeting.   

128



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  February 16, 2016 
3 

 

GMP #6 (Site Prep C) $4,311,589 Site Preparation Package C will includes installation of micro-
piles, preparation for a tower crane and extension of the outfall 
to the site. 

Community Room TBD City Council elected to remove the Community Room from the 
project at the February 10, 2016 Special Council Meeting. 

 

Funding: Pending Description 

2016 CWSRF – WWTP 
Construction 

The City has been allocated $15,631,311 at a reduced interest rate of 1.9% for 20 
years and an additional $463,154 forgivable principal for hardship and green 
project reserve. An additional $4,586,846 in Centennial Grant was also offered. 
The 2016 CWSRF agreement has been drafted and is being reviewed. 

2017 CWSRF - WWTP 
Construction 

On January 21, 2016 we received news that the CWF is on the 2017 proposed 
funding list for an additional $42,632,742 in SRF Loans at an interest rate of 
1.6%.  The final approved list comes from the state legislature and typically 
occurs around July. 

Bonds The City’s financial advisor for the project, PFM, presented options for issuing 
bonds for the new Clean Water Facility at the September 30th City Council Special 
Workshop.  The City is reviewing our funding options with regards to CWSRF vs. 
Bonds to develop the most advantageous funding program for the project. The 
goal is to reduce the overall burden on the rate payers. City staff initiated 
preparation of POS statement necessary to issue revenue bonds. 

Rates HDR presented potential rate impacts of the new Clean Water Facility to City 
Council at a Special Workshop held September 30th.  Staff is currently reviewing 
the impacts of the funding sources listed above, current bond rates and the 
estimated cost of the project to determine how the project rates might be 
impacted by the construction cost increases and lower financing rates.  Staff is 
proceeding with a bond sale in early this year. 

Funding: In hand Description 
2015 CWSRF – Outfall 
Design and Construction 

The City has received $3,200,000 in low interest loans from DOE for design and 
construction of the new outfall for the wastewater treatment plant. The loan is for 
20 years at 2.7% interest. 

2015 CWSRF – WWTP 
Design 

The City has received $8,260,000 in low interest loans for design of the new 
wastewater treatment plant. The loan is for 20 years at 2.7% interest. 

Department of Commerce 
Grant 

The City has received a $2,500,000 grant from the Governors Capital 
Improvement Program. 

Bond Anticipation Note Staff has secured interim financing through US Bank to bridge the gap between 
CWSRF reimbursements and the issuance of revenue bonds.  We are anticipating 
a $10,000,000 short term loan (6 months) at 0.64% interest. 

Reserves The sewer fund has been accumulating reserves that have been earmarked for 
this project. 

 
 
  

129



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  February 16, 2016 
4 

 

COMMUNICATIONS AND OUTREACH STATUS 
Upcoming activities or 
In-Progress activities 

Description 

Project communications 
plan 

With initiation of the Site Prep B portion of the project, the project team has 
implemented the Good Neighbor Plan.  A project brochure was sent to all 
addresses in the city.  New project signs have been posted at the site.   

Windjammer Park 
Integration Plan   

A workshop with City Council was held on December 16th highlighting City Council 
priorities.  A Citizen Advisory Group is currently being established to develop a 
plan for the area surrounding the Clean Water Facility.  Meetings of the Citizen 
Advisory Group were held on January 20th and February 4th. 

 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  

 

 

PROJECT CONTACT INFORMATION 
 
Web 
www.oakharborcleanwater.org 
 
Email 
treatmentplant@oakharbor.org 
 
General phone (24-hour)  
360-914-7000 
 
 
Project team contact information 
Joe Stowell, P.E., City Engineer 
360-720-8796 
jstowell@oakharbor.org 

Brett Arvidson P.E., Project Engineer 
360-914-7987 
barvidson@oakharbor.org 

 

We are here 

130

http://www.oakharborcleanwater.org/
mailto:treatmentplant@oakharbor.org
mailto:jstowell@oakharbor.org
tel:13609147987
mailto:barvidson@oakharbor.org


City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Resolution 16-07: Countywide 
Planning Policies

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Resolution No. 16-07 adopting the Countywide Planning Policies.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Counties and the cities within them planning under the Growth Management Act (GMA) are required to 
adopt countywide planning policies (RCW 36.70A.210). The countywide planning policies (CWPP) are
policy statements used solely for establishing a countywide framework from which county and city 
comprehensive plans are developed and adopted.  Island County, the cities of Langley and Oak Harbor, 
and the town of Coupeville have been working to update the CWPP to better meet the planning needs of

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 7.a
Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Resolution 16-07: Countywide 
Planning Policies

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Resolution No. 16-07 adopting the Countywide Planning Policies.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Counties and the cities within them planning under the Growth Management Act (GMA) are required to 
adopt countywide planning policies (RCW 36.70A.210). The countywide planning policies (CWPP) are 
policy statements used solely for establishing a countywide framework from which county and city 
comprehensive plans are developed and adopted.  Island County, the cities of Langley and Oak Harbor, 
and the town of Coupeville have been working to update the CWPP to better meet the planning needs ofand the town of Coupeville have been working to update the CWPP to better meet the planning needs of
the future.

This project has been discussed several times in the past with the City Council.  The Council took an 
initial formal action at the June 16, 2015 regular meeting.  The agenda bill (without attachments) from that
meeting provides a summary of the CWPP update project and is provided as Attachment 1.  At the 
conclusion of that meeting, the Council adopted Resolution No. 15-20 which formally transmitted the 
City’s comments on the draft CWPP to Island County.  Since that time, the County has revised the draft
to incorporate the City’s comments and has taken final action on the CWPP.  It is necessary for the City
to take final action on the CWPP as well.  Approval of Resolution No. 16-07, which includes the final 
CWPP, will accomplish this (please see Attachment 2).

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Counties and the cities within them planning under the Growth Management Act (GMA) are required to 
adopt countywide planning policies (RCW 36.70A.210)

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: N/A

and the town of Coupeville have been working to update the CWPP to better meet the planning needs of 
the future.

This project has been discussed several times in the past with the City Council.  The Council took an 
initial formal action at the June 16, 2015 regular meeting.  The agenda bill (without attachments) from that 
meeting provides a summary of the CWPP update project and is provided as Attachment 1.  At the 
conclusion of that meeting, the Council adopted Resolution No. 15-20 which formally transmitted the 
City’s comments on the draft CWPP to Island County.  Since that time, the County has revised the draft 
to incorporate the City’s comments and has taken final action on the CWPP.  It is necessary for the City 
to take final action on the CWPP as well.  Approval of Resolution No. 16-07, which includes the final 
CWPP, will accomplish this (please see Attachment 2).

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Counties and the cities within them planning under the Growth Management Act (GMA) are required to 
adopt countywide planning policies (RCW 36.70A.210)

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: N/A

131



Appropriation Source: N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
Staff has briefed the City Council on this matter numerous times.  The last workshop briefing occurred on 
January 20, 2016.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Agenda bill, without attachments, from June 16, 2015 meeting
2. Resolution No. 16-07

Appropriation Source: N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
Staff has briefed the City Council on this matter numerous times.  The last workshop briefing occurred on 
January 20, 2016.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Agenda bill, without attachments, from June 16, 2015 meeting
2. Resolution No. 16-07

132

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=3507ae08e21f08e45e749bfbadb2ed75&aName=1454701864_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=3507ae08e21f08e45e749bfbadb2ed75&aName=1454701903_at.pdf


City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: June 16, 2015

Subject: Resolution 15-20:  Countywide 
Planning Policies

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Resolution No. 15-20

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This agenda bill presents the draft Countywide Planning Policies (CWPP) for the City Council’s initial, 
formal consideration and comment.  The Council is asked to officially forward the City’s comments on 
the CWPP to Island County.

BACKGROUND

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8.b
Date: June 16, 2015

Subject: Resolution 15-20:  Countywide 
Planning Policies

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Resolution No. 15-20

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This agenda bill presents the draft Countywide Planning Policies (CWPP) for the City Council’s initial, 
formal consideration and comment.  The Council is asked to officially forward the City’s comments on 
the CWPP to Island County.

BACKGROUNDBACKGROUND

Counties and the cities within them planning under the Growth Management Act (GMA) are required to 
adopt countywide planning policies (RCW 36.70A.210; Attachment 1). The countywide planning 
policies (CWPP) are policy statements used solely for establishing a countywide framework from which
county and city comprehensive plans are developed and adopted.  At a minimum the policies address the 
following:

(a) Policies to implement RCW 36.70A.110[urban growth areas] (Attachment 2);

(b) Policies for promotion of contiguous and orderly development and provision of urban services to such
development;

(c) Policies for siting public capital facilities of a countywide or statewide nature, including transportation
facilities of statewide significance as defined in RCW 47.06.140;

(d) Policies for countywide transportation facilities and strategies;

(e) Policies that consider the need for affordable housing, such as housing for all economic segments of 
the population and parameters for its distribution;

BACKGROUND

Counties and the cities within them planning under the Growth Management Act (GMA) are required to 
adopt countywide planning policies (RCW 36.70A.210; Attachment 1). The countywide planning 
policies (CWPP) are policy statements used solely for establishing a countywide framework from which 
county and city comprehensive plans are developed and adopted.  At a minimum the policies address the 
following:

(a) Policies to implement RCW 36.70A.110[urban growth areas] (Attachment 2);

(b) Policies for promotion of contiguous and orderly development and provision of urban services to such 
development;

(c) Policies for siting public capital facilities of a countywide or statewide nature, including transportation 
facilities of statewide significance as defined in RCW 47.06.140;

(d) Policies for countywide transportation facilities and strategies;

(e) Policies that consider the need for affordable housing, such as housing for all economic segments of 
the population and parameters for its distribution;

44133



(f) Policies for joint county and city planning within urban growth areas;

(g) Policies for countywide economic development and employment, which must include consideration of 
the future development of commercial and industrial facilities; and

(h) An analysis of the fiscal impact.

Under GMA, counties take the lead in coordinating the drafting of the CWPP.  Staffs from Island 
County, Coupeville, Langley and Oak Harbor met approximately 15 times between March 2013 and 
February 2015 to discuss revisions to the CWPP and to create a unified methodology for analyzing the 
quantity of buildable land in Island County’s UGAs. 

THE DRAFT

The CWPP provide a framework for the adoption of comprehensive plans and are intended to help guide 
and coordinate issues of regional significance.  They address a wide variety of topics including, but not 
limited to, joint planning areas, urban growth areas, urban development and land capacity analysis. 

County staff took the lead in preparing the initial version of the draft CWPP.  The format of the draft is 
significantly different than that of the existing CWPP.  Where policies within the existing CWPP are 
general, the proposed policies are generally more detailed.  Greater attention is also paid to how certain 
aspects of the policies will be implemented (e.g. how a land capacity analysis is to be completed). 

City staff played an active role in discussing the implications of the proposed policies and in advocating 
for amendments to the draft.  The majority of Oak Harbor’s suggested amendments have already been 
incorporated.  As one might expect, there was not one-hundred percent agreement on all items by all 
parties.  Overall, however, it is fair to say that City staff is reasonably comfortable with the proposed 

(f) Policies for joint county and city planning within urban growth areas;

(g) Policies for countywide economic development and employment, which must include consideration of 
the future development of commercial and industrial facilities; and

(h) An analysis of the fiscal impact.

Under GMA, counties take the lead in coordinating the drafting of the CWPP.  Staffs from Island 
County, Coupeville, Langley and Oak Harbor met approximately 15 times between March 2013 and 
February 2015 to discuss revisions to the CWPP and to create a unified methodology for analyzing the 
quantity of buildable land in Island County’s UGAs. 

THE DRAFT

The CWPP provide a framework for the adoption of comprehensive plans and are intended to help guide 
and coordinate issues of regional significance.  They address a wide variety of topics including, but not 
limited to, joint planning areas, urban growth areas, urban development and land capacity analysis. 

County staff took the lead in preparing the initial version of the draft CWPP.  The format of the draft is 
significantly different than that of the existing CWPP.  Where policies within the existing CWPP are 
general, the proposed policies are generally more detailed.  Greater attention is also paid to how certain 
aspects of the policies will be implemented (e.g. how a land capacity analysis is to be completed). 

City staff played an active role in discussing the implications of the proposed policies and in advocating 
for amendments to the draft.  The majority of Oak Harbor’s suggested amendments have already been 
incorporated.  As one might expect, there was not one-hundred percent agreement on all items by all 
parties.  Overall, however, it is fair to say that City staff is reasonably comfortable with the proposed parties.  Overall, however, it is fair to say that City staff is reasonably comfortable with the proposed 
polices. 

In addition to the staff work, the draft CWPP have gone through an extensive briefing and review process 
with the Planning Commission and City Council.  The completed their work by conducting a public 

hearing on March 24th and April 28th and recommending approval of the draft CWPP (see section 
below).  The staff reports (without attachments) and the minutes from the Commission’s public hearing 
dates are attached to this agenda bill as Attachments 3 and 4, respectively.

A question regarding the proposed language of one portion of the CWPP has come up since the time of 
the Planning Commission’s recommendation.  This question pertains to one of the thresholds used to 
determine the development potential of partially vacant lots within the UGA.  In short, staff is concerned 
that as drafted the language may lead to an overstatement of the practical land capacity within the UGA.  
Staff has added a comment to the appropriate section of the draft for the Council’s consideration (UGA 
Capacity – Single Family Zones, No. 2; page 31of draft).  Staff has also preliminarily raised this topic 
with Island County staff.

ISLAND COUNTY REVIEW AND REQUEST

The Island County Planning Commission and Board of County Commissioners have both taken action on 
the draft CWPP.  The Planning Commission voted on March 9, 2015 to recommend the County 

parties.  Overall, however, it is fair to say that City staff is reasonably comfortable with the proposed 
polices. 

In addition to the staff work, the draft CWPP have gone through an extensive briefing and review process 
with the Planning Commission and City Council.  The completed their work by conducting a public 

hearing on March 24th and April 28th and recommending approval of the draft CWPP (see section 
below).  The staff reports (without attachments) and the minutes from the Commission’s public hearing 
dates are attached to this agenda bill as Attachments 3 and 4, respectively.

A question regarding the proposed language of one portion of the CWPP has come up since the time of 
the Planning Commission’s recommendation.  This question pertains to one of the thresholds used to 
determine the development potential of partially vacant lots within the UGA.  In short, staff is concerned 
that as drafted the language may lead to an overstatement of the practical land capacity within the UGA.  
Staff has added a comment to the appropriate section of the draft for the Council’s consideration (UGA 
Capacity – Single Family Zones, No. 2; page 31of draft).  Staff has also preliminarily raised this topic 
with Island County staff.

ISLAND COUNTY REVIEW AND REQUEST

The Island County Planning Commission and Board of County Commissioners have both taken action on 
the draft CWPP.  The Planning Commission voted on March 9, 2015 to recommend the County 

45134



Commissioners begin the process of adopting the revised CWPP.  On April 21, 2015 the County 
Commissioners approved Resolution C-34-15, updating the CWPP, and beginning a sixty day comment 
period.  The resolution requests Coupeville, Langley and Oak Harbor provide formal comments to Island 
County no later than July 1, 2015.  The resolution, CWPP and other materials were transmitted to the 
City via a letter dated April 28, 2015.  The cover letter and attached materials are included with this 
agenda bill as Attachment 5. 

The County requests that the City’s comments be in the form of a City Council resolution.  Staff has 
drafted a resolution (Resolution No. 15-20) to meet this purpose (Attachment 6).  The most straight 
forward way to transmit the City’s comments to the County is to attach an annotated version of the 
CWPP to the resolution.  The CWPP attached to the resolution are as recommended by the Planning 
Commission on April 28, 2015, plus staff’s additional comment as referenced earlier.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 36.70A.210
RCW 36.70A.110

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: N/A
Appropriation Source: N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
The Planning Commission was briefed a number of times on the CWPP.  Meeting dates in 2014 included 

Commissioners begin the process of adopting the revised CWPP.  On April 21, 2015 the County 
Commissioners approved Resolution C-34-15, updating the CWPP, and beginning a sixty day comment 
period.  The resolution requests Coupeville, Langley and Oak Harbor provide formal comments to Island 
County no later than July 1, 2015.  The resolution, CWPP and other materials were transmitted to the 
City via a letter dated April 28, 2015.  The cover letter and attached materials are included with this 
agenda bill as Attachment 5. 

The County requests that the City’s comments be in the form of a City Council resolution.  Staff has 
drafted a resolution (Resolution No. 15-20) to meet this purpose (Attachment 6).  The most straight 
forward way to transmit the City’s comments to the County is to attach an annotated version of the 
CWPP to the resolution.  The CWPP attached to the resolution are as recommended by the Planning 
Commission on April 28, 2015, plus staff’s additional comment as referenced earlier.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 36.70A.210
RCW 36.70A.110

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: N/A
Appropriation Source: N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
The Planning Commission was briefed a number of times on the CWPP.  Meeting dates in 2014 included The Planning Commission was briefed a number of times on the CWPP.  Meeting dates in 2014 included 
October 28th, November 19th, November 25th and December 9th.  2015 meeting dates included 

January 27th and February 24th.  On March 24, 2015 the Planning Commission opened a public hearing 
on the CWPP.  They closed the hearing on April 28, 2015 and recommended approval of the draft 
CWPP to the City Council. 

 The Council was briefed on this item at their December 17, 2014 workshop.  In 2015, the Council was 
briefed on January 28th, February 11th, April 22nd, and May 27th workshops.

ATTACHMENTS
1. RCW 36.70A.210, Countywide planning policies
2. RCW 36.70A.110, Urban growth areas
3. Planning Commission report and minutes, March 24, 2015
4. Planning Commission report and minutes, April 28, 2015
5. Island County, CWPP 60-day comment period letter plus attachments, April 28, 2015
6. Resolution No. 15-20, with attached CWPP (PC recommended plus one staff comment)

The Planning Commission was briefed a number of times on the CWPP.  Meeting dates in 2014 included 
October 28th, November 19th, November 25th and December 9th.  2015 meeting dates included 

January 27th and February 24th.  On March 24, 2015 the Planning Commission opened a public hearing 
on the CWPP.  They closed the hearing on April 28, 2015 and recommended approval of the draft 
CWPP to the City Council. 

 The Council was briefed on this item at their December 17, 2014 workshop.  In 2015, the Council was 
briefed on January 28th, February 11th, April 22nd, and May 27th workshops.

ATTACHMENTS
1. RCW 36.70A.210, Countywide planning policies
2. RCW 36.70A.110, Urban growth areas
3. Planning Commission report and minutes, March 24, 2015
4. Planning Commission report and minutes, April 28, 2015
5. Island County, CWPP 60-day comment period letter plus attachments, April 28, 2015
6. Resolution No. 15-20, with attached CWPP (PC recommended plus one staff comment)

46135

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433866787_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433866827_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433866865_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433866897_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433866963_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433867023_at.pdf


P:\Boards and Committees GS2012-027 (6yrs XFR)\CITY COUNCIL\CC\16\02-16-16\CWPP 2016\CWPP Resolution 16-
07.docx 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-07 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING UPDATED COUNTYWIDE PLANNING POLICIES 

WHEREAS, the Growth Management Act (GMA) requires that counties subject to the 
GMA adopt Countywide Planning Policies (CWPP) and further requires that these policies be 
developed with the cooperation of the municipalities within the county (RCW 36.70A.210(2)); 
and 

WHEREAS, CWPP are written policy statements used to establish a countywide framework 
from which county and municipal comprehensive plans are developed and adopted in order to 
ensure consistency between plans as required by RCW 36.70A.100 and .210; and 

WHEREAS, CWPP are also intended to improve coordination between governmental 
agencies and prevent redundant or conflicting actions; and 

WHEREAS, in order to address the requirements of the GMA, Island County, and the 
jurisdictions within Island County, first adopted CWPP in 1992 which were subsequently 
revised in 1998 and 1999; and 

WHEREAS, in the sixteen years since the CWPP were last revised the GMA has evolved 
through legislative changes, judicial interpretations, and Growth Management Act Hearings 
Board decisions; and 

WHEREAS, intergovernmental planning and coordination issues became apparent which 
were not anticipated when the CWPP were originally drafted; most notably it has become 
apparent that more specific standards, policies, and criteria are necessary to guide decisions 
about the size of Urban Growth Areas (UGA) and the process for managing growth within 
UGA; and 

WHEREAS, the current CWPP include outdated population projections, figures, and 
allocations, which are not consistent with current projections, figures, and allocations; and 

WHEREAS, replacing the explicitly stated population projections and figures in the current 
CWPP with a process and a methodology to guide future population forecasting and allocation 
efforts will ensure consistency in addressing future growth needs without requiring specific 
changes to each update of population forecasts; and 

136



P:\Boards and Committees GS2012-027 (6yrs XFR)\CITY COUNCIL\CC\16\02-16-16\CWPP 2016\CWPP Resolution 16-
07.docx 

WHEREAS, the current CWPP should be revised in order to address outdated information, 
improve intergovernmental coordination, and improve the efficiency and effectiveness of 
multi- jurisdiction planning efforts; and 
 
WHEREAS, the GMA requires that CWPP be developed and revised through a collaborative 
effort with each of the affected jurisdictions; and 
 
WHEREAS, an Intergovernmental Planning Group (IWG) comprised of representatives from 
the planning departments of Coupeville, Island County, Langley, and Oak Harbor was 
formed for the purpose of facilitating the collaborative process described above and 
developing revised CWPP; and 
 
WHEREAS, the IWG held approximately 15 meetings between March 2013 and February 
2015 to discuss revisions to the CWPP and the creation of a unified methodology for 
analyzing the quantity of buildable land in Island County's UGA, reaching consensus on the 
proposed changes to the CWPP in February 2015; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Oak Harbor Planning Commission was briefed on the CWPP at their October 
28, November 19, November 25 and December 9, 2014 meetings and at their January 27 and 
February 24, 2015 meetings; and   
 
WHEREAS, on the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on March 24, 2015 and 
April 28, 2015 and at its conclusion recommended approval of the draft CWPP to the City 
Council; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Oak Harbor City Council was briefed on the CWPP at their December 17, 2014 
workshop and at their January 28, February 11, April 22, and May 27, 2015 workshops; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the Planning Commission’s recommendation being made staff 
determined that some additional modification of the draft CWPP was necessary; and  
 
WHEREAS, through the approval of Resolution No. 15-20 on June 16, 2015, the City Council 
authorized staff to send formal comments to Island County on the draft CWPP; and 
  
WHEREAS, Island County subsequently incorporated Oak Harbor’s comments and approved the 
CWPP on November 3, 2015; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary for the City Council to take final action on the CWPP so that they 
may be utilized by the City when undertaking GMA comprehensive planning. 
 

137



P:\Boards and Committees GS2012-027 (6yrs XFR)\CITY COUNCIL\CC\16\02-16-16\CWPP 2016\CWPP Resolution 16-
07.docx 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor that the 
Countywide Planning Policies, as attached as Exhibit 1 to this resolution, are hereby adopted. 
 
PASSED by the City Council and approved by its Mayor this 16th day of February, 2016. 
 
       CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
       _______________________ 
       Robert Severns, MAYOR 
 
 
Attest:       Approved as to form: 
 
________________________   ________________________ 
Anna Thompson, City Clerk    Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

138



EXHIBIT 1

139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Discussion regarding Review of 
Public Employees Performance -
No Action will be taken

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Discussion regarding Review of Public Employees Performance. No Action will be taken.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 42.30.110 (1) (g)

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 11.a
Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Discussion regarding Review of 
Public Employees Performance -
No Action will be taken

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Discussion regarding Review of Public Employees Performance. No Action will be taken.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 42.30.110 (1) (g)

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

173



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Discussion regarding Wells 
Fargo Property Acquisition, and 
Reconvene into Open Session to 
take Possible Action

FROM: Legal Department

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Discussion regarding Wells Fargo Property Acquisition. No Action will be taken during Executive 
Session.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Council will reconvene into Open Session to take possible action on this discussion item.

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 11.b
Date: February 16, 2016

Subject: Discussion regarding Wells 
Fargo Property Acquisition, and 
Reconvene into Open Session to 
take Possible Action

FROM: Legal Department

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Discussion regarding Wells Fargo Property Acquisition. No Action will be taken during Executive 
Session.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Council will reconvene into Open Session to take possible action on this discussion item.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 42.30.110 (1) (b)

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 42.30.110 (1) (b)

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

174


	Agenda for February 16, 2016 Regular City Council Meeting
	2.c.i.  Planning Commission's 2015 Annual Report to City Council
	 Planning Commission's 2015 Annual Report to City Council

	C/A 4.a  Minutes of the Regular Meeting on February 2, 2016, and Special Meeting on February 10, 2016
	 2/02/2016 Minutes
	 2/10/2016 Minutes

	C/A 4.b  Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks
	 Voucher Listing (1)
	 Voucher Listing (2)
	 Voucher Listing (3)

	C/A 4.c  Resolution 16-09: Signature Authority for SRF Loan #WQC-2016-OakHar-00240
	 SRF Loan #WQC-2016-OakHarbor-00240
	 Resolution No. 16-09

	C/A 4.d  Special Event Permit - Race Week 2016 Catalina Park 
	 Special Event Permit Race Week 2016
	 Washington State Liquor and Cannabis Board Banquet Permit Race Week 2016

	C/A 4.e  Purchase Authorization-Chevrolet Colorado Pick-ups
	C/A 4.f  Purchase Authorization-Ford Police Interceptor SUV
	C/A 4.g  Surplus Authorization-Panasonic Toughbooks
	 Panasonic Toughbook Surplus List 2016

	C/A 4.h  Freedom Properties: Letter of Intent to Exercise Option No. 2 per the Agreement to Extend the Lease for a 3-year term
	 Letter of Intent to Extend

	C/A 4.i  Signature authority for Change Order Proposal (COP) #3 - Energy Efficiency Project (Ameresco)
	 COP #3 - Ameresco

	C/A 4.j  Clean Water Facility - Puget Sound Energy Schedule 74 Agreement and temporary service Agreement to underground power lines.
	 Attachment A - PSE Schedule 74 Construction Agreement, project plan, and cost estimate
	 Attachment B - PSE Temporary Service Agreement

	5.a.i  Clean Water Facility Project Update by City Staff
	 Report for 2/16/2016

	7.a  Resolution 16-07: Countywide Planning Policies
	 Agenda bill, without attachments, from June 16, 2015 meeting
	 Resolution No. 16-07

	11.a  Discussion regarding Review of Public Employees Performance - No Action will be taken
	11.b.  Discussion regarding Wells Fargo Property Acquisition, and Reconvene into Open Session to take Possible Action



